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2 ~ The pat_h into the future is vast, unpredictable, and seemingly infinite.

Although the big unknown may be formidable, it also gives us plenty of
opportunities. Only the willing will thrive in the future.
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Trust your instincts and follow the path that you
believe in. Create a mark for yourself.



About
Us

Tata Capital Limited ("TCL"), a subsidiary of
Tata Sons Private Limited, is registered with the
Reserve Bank of India as a Systemically Important
Non-Deposit Accepting Core Investment Company.

A trusted, customer-centric, one-stop financial
solutions partner, Tata Capital and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as "Tata Capital”) are
engaged in lending and offering a wide array of
services / products in the financial services sector.
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Focus not on the mountain, but on the path that cuts
through it. Don't look back, let grit carry you to greatness.



Our Purpose

and Plillars

A responsible financial partner fulfilling

India’s aspirations.

Lead with Trust

We respect and reinforce the trust that is
placed in us. We are lenders the country can
rely on.

Future Ready

We innovate and leverage technology to
anticipate, serve and shape future needs;
setting the path for others to follow.

Capital & More

We serve the customer through the life-cycle
of needs. We are facilitators and counsellors
in helping customers achieve their dreams.

Better Together
We actively collaborate with group companies,

partners, employees, customers, communities;
their success is our success.

Faster Forward
We bring speed and simplicity; accelerating

the pace at which the future becomes the
present.

Delivering Delight
We go above and beyond to care and make

people happy. We deliver smiles and delight
in everything we do.
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Ride your wave until you cannot see the shore.
Then wait for your capabilities to surprise you.




CSR
INnitiatives

True to the spirit of the Tata companies, Tata Capital believes that Corporate Sustainability is the
cornerstone of business operations. Tata Capital's CSR approach is oriented towards a
stakeholder-participation methodology where the well-being of the target groups, like the
community and the environment, are integral to the long-term success of the company. To guide
this journey, Tata Capital has defined its CSR vision and purpose which helps drive CSR
implementation and achieve the desired results and impact.

Vision
To create shared value for the community at large in line with the Tata Group’'s core purpose.

Purpose

We endeavor to improve the lives of the community, especially the socially and economically
underprivileged, by making a long term, measurable and positive impact through projects in the
areas of Education, Skill Development & Entrepreneurship, Climate Action and Health.

Focus Areas

Skill Development &

Education Climate Action Health i
Entrepreneurship

*Number of beneficiaries for the year: 2,74,449

Initiatives and programs undertaken:

+ The Cluster Development program aims to provide supplementary education to
underprivileged students in Vikramgad and Sudhagad in Maharashtra.

- The Tata Capital Pankh Scholarship program supports meritorious underprivileged youth with
scholarships and mentoring for higher education.

« ProAspire is a skilling initiative for underprivileged youth to be skilled in domain knowledge and
life-skills and access placement opportunities in the BFSI sector.

+ Dhan Gyan is a free e-learning course on financial literacy based on the National
Financial Literacy Awareness Test (NFLAT) syllabus. It is available in English and Hindi.
(www.dhangyan.com)

»  Our health care initiatives, Aarogyatara and Cancer CELL, aim to provide access to quality
preventive healthcare to fight against curable blindness and cancer.

« The JalAadhar project is an integrated watershed management program which aims to build
water security through water and soil conservation and improved agricultural methods.

« The Green Switch Project aims to provide clean, renewable and reliable electricity to unlit
homes in rural parts of India through a community partnership model.

» Project Ecosphere focuses to ensure availability of clean drinking water and water for irrigation
with use of solar pumping system in the water stress areas of Mokhada and Sindhudurg,
Maharashtra.

» Welfare activities for women:

a) To better the working conditions of women in uniform, a project with Mumbai Police was
carried out in the form of refurbishment of restrooms and washrooms for women at VIP
Protection Cell — Fort, Azad Maidan and N M Joshi Marg Police Stations.

b) Mobile Toilet Units provided at Kanpur and Thane.

c) Online social, educational and entrepreneurial empowerment programs for our Army Veer Naris
(War Widows), the spouses of our martyred and disabled serving soldiers and their
dependents.

05



Never settle for good.’Keep pursuing greatness, and
it will find its way to you.




Product
Portfolio

As a one-stop financial services provider, Tata Capital caters to the diverse financial
requirements of its retail, corporate and institutional customers with a comprehensive
suite of products and service offerings:

* Personal Loans * Private Equity

* Home Loans * Loan Against Property

» Business Loans * \Wealth Products Distribution
» Other Consumer Loans  Commercial and SME Finance
» Cleantech Finance  Leasing Solutions

* Institutional Distribution * Tata Cards

Private Equity Advisory Services are offered by Tata Capital Limited. Private Equity Funds are
registered with SEBI as Domestic Venture Capital Funds / Alternative Investment Funds.
Personal Loans, Business Loans, Other Consumer Loans, Loan Against Property, Commercial
and SME Finance, Wealth Services, Leasing Solutions, are originated and serviced by Tata
Capital Financial Services Limited. Home Loans are offered by Tata Capital Housing Finance
Limited. Institutional Distribution is offered by Tata Securities Limited. Cleantech Finance is
offered by Tata Cleantech Capital Limited. Tata Credit Card is issued, operated and
established by SBI Cards and Payments Services Private Limited and is marketed by Tata
Capital Financial Services Limited (“TCFSL"). All loan products and services are at the sole
discretion of the respective entities.
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Find a light that guides you. Then give it everything you've got
and come out stronger, braver and fearless



Digital Initiatives

Digital transformation continues to be an area of continuous focus for Tata Capital. During FY 22-23, the
organisation has continued to invest to create best-in-class digital platforms and products. This in turn has
enabled us to provide superior and more personalised customer experiences, greater operational efficiency
across the lending value chain and become a relevant player in India’s growing digital ecosystem.

During FY22-23, Tata Capital enhanced its digital presence through the launch of a new and improved
customer facing website with an improved customer interface, a smarter search tool, industry first features
such as dark mode and reimagined retail loan journeys. The website which caters to all retail and corporate
customer segments also witnessed a significant increase in customer traffic during the financial year. In
addition, the company launched a new omni-channel marketing automation platform which will enable
real-time customer engagement across the loan origination servicing. The key features of this tool such as
customer journey orchestration using multiple channels, real time nudges, detailed insights & analytics of
campaigns executed and App/Web integration for engagement and retention activities will increase our
marketing productivity and also ensure a far more personalised experience for our customers.

At Tata Capital, it has been our endeavour to enhance self-service by providing customers with a range of
channels and platforms to choose from for all their servicing needs. Currently, over 75% of customer service
interactions take place through digital platforms. Customers can interact across channels including web,
mobile applications, WhatsApp, chat-bot and voice-bot to name a few. Our chat based servicing channel (TIA)
witnessed a significant increase in usage during the year. More than 8 lakh interactions per month take place
on TIA- voice and chat-based platform. Further, we launched digital kiosks at few Tata Capital branches. These
are user-friendly self-service devices offering more than 20 types of services that customers can avail
seamlessly. Overall, the kiosks are helping in reducing the service wait-time and improving efficiency of query
resolutions.

We have introduced several industry-best customer journeys to increase the share of direct-to-customer
business and to ensure a more seamless customer experience. The share of business from direct and digital
channels has increased multi-fold last year. Further, the company has launched digital-only products and
services across customer segments. For example, Moneyfy is a digital only wealth service application which
allows customers to carry out all their investments in an instant manner. Further, a new seamless journey was
launched for customers seeking small business loans. Almost all customer processes starting from on-boarding
to underwriting to disbursements are done in a paperless manner for retail loans. Similarly, for SME and
corporate customers, a hew loan origination system was launched which will simplify the customer journey
further and enable quicker processing and sanction of loans.

In line with the overall focus on digital transformation, the use of artificial intelligence and machine learning
continued across domains. Several machine learning based scorecards are in use for underwriting as well as
debt servicing of loans. Use of these advanced algorithms has helped us assess creditworthiness and mitigate
risks, make faster and accurate lending decisions and to set up a more efficient debt servicing strategy. In
addition, our use of Robotic Process Automation (RPA) for repetitive tasks in our operations shops has reached
a high level of maturity. RPA has now been implemented for almost all centralised processes. This has improved
the overall operational efficiency and in turn leaded to cost reduction. The use of digital channels for collection
of EMI payments also saw an increase over the year, backed by launch of new payment modes including QR
code based payments and UPI payments. Currently more than 90% of collections take place through digital
channels.

We also continue to collaborate with FinTechs for business growth and enablement of customer journeys and
processes. During the year, the business generated from partnerships has grown significantly. In addition, Tata
Capital is integrated with more than 100 plus FinTech partners across multiple domains to enhance service and
ensure seamless digital processes.

In this journey of digitisation, Tata Capital will continue to focus on building best in class digital platforms to
bring customer delight, enhance operational efficiency and improve productivity. We will continue to create
new benchmarks by building capabilities, products and services which will make us a financier of choice across
customer segments.

LEVERAGING DATA ANALYTICS TO UNDERSTAND CUSTOMER BEHAVIOUR

Data analytics is at the core of our growth strategy. It is used to acquire, on-board, service, up-sell, cross-sell,
assess risk and improve process efficiency across our functions. Our growth in customer acquisition for lending
is enabled through data analytics and advanced data science applications. We have a dedicated team of data
science and data engineering experts who support the ambition of data-led personalised customer service
delivery. Personalised offers for instant loan applications, pre-approved loan offers for existing relationships,
scorecard-based underwriting, pre-delinquency models are some of the examples of leveraging data analytics
for real-time decisions and better customer experience. With customer touch points augmented by data
analytics and data science, this is becoming the new normal for our customers.



There's a lot about the world you don't know yet. Seek answers in
and discover more in the process.



New Products
Introduced

Micro business loans

Tata Capital launched Micro Business Loans as a sub-variant of Business
Loans in April 2022 to Traders, Service providers and Manufacturers. The
entire onboarding journey is fully digitized with various integrations
including NSDL PAN check, Digital KYC, Banking Analysis Automation and
Digital Agreement with Aadhaar E-sign. Customers can now avail small
ticket loans in a quick and paperless manner.
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SAGAINST ODDS

e

Rise to the challenge N atter the obstacle, know that if
you keep at it, you will realise your full potential.




Brand Initiatives

Tata Capital has been nurturing its brand promise ‘Count on Us’, over the last three years. The
brand continues to build on its commitment of delivering on promises to ensure
consistency, transparency and quick solutions.

Having moved to an ‘always-on’ media strategy, this financial year saw various digital, social
media and conventional media campaigns. The brand remains focused on a media mix of
conventional campaigns at regular intervals, supplemented with social media and digital
branding through the year to elevate overall equity and consideration.

'‘Palak Jhapkao Loan Pao’, the main Brand Campaign for this financial year had a series of
short films themed around digital, seamless and quick loans offered by Tata Capital. The
campaign had 4 product films, each based on an insight from the product category. This was
followed by a 2nd burst with the addition of a digital product campaign for Loan Against
Securities (LAS). The objective was to reach the untapped audiences with a new product
solution of ‘Digital LAS'.

Tata Capital was also very proud to associate with the inaugural edition of the Tata Women's
Premier League 2023. We hope that this partnership with WPL will help provide the
opportunity to promote women's cricket and help build a team of cricketing champions.
Alongside various on-ground branding integrations, the brand was also present on digital
and TV media with the launch of the 'Ek Soch Ko Harana Hai' WPL campaign film.

Two other digital product campaigns for Moneyfy and Home Loans were launched this year.
The campaigns had a two-pronged objective of building brand salience and reaching
relevant ‘intender audiences’ creating an uptake on traffic from the campaign, as well as the
organic traffic.

The brand could also leverage 2 topical campaigns on ‘Mother's Day' and ‘Ganesh Chaturthi’
on Social Media. Furthermore, an influencer led education series was also launched in the
last quarter to reach out to younger audiences. Social Media also contributes in an immense
way on all things that get executed in a financial year.

In the years to follow, the brand will continue to raise the bar on marketing activities with
newer associations and possibilities. It will remain predisposed to social media and digital
media campaigns to connect with immediate prospective audiences, while using
conventional media for wider reach objectives.
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The greatest get thére by defying all odds and finding new ground:
Take inspiration from their stories and let their courage fuel your own.



Tata Capital

Team

TATA CAPITAL LIMITED

Board of Directors

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal — Chairman
Mr. Farokh N. Subedar

Ms. Varsha Purandare

Ms. Malvika Sinha

Mr. V S Radhakrishnan

Mr. Mathew Cyriac

Ms. Aarthi Subramanian

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal -

Managing Director & CEO

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Rakesh Bhatia

Head - Legal and Compliance &
Company Secretary
Ms. Sarita Kamath

Statutory Auditors
KKC & Associates LLP
(formerly Khimiji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Registrar & Transfer Agents
TSR Consultants Private Limited
(formerly TSR Darashaw Consultants
Private Limited)

C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park

Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg

Vikhroli (West)

Mumbai - 400 083

Tel: +9122 6656 8484

TATA CAPITAL FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED

Board of Directors

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal — Chairman

Mr. Farokh N. Subedar

Ms. Varsha Purandare

Ms. Malvika Sinha

Mr.V S Radhakrishnan (w.e.f. April 25, 2023)
Mr. Sarosh Amaria — Managing Director

TATA CAPITAL HOUSING
FINANCE LIMITED

Board of Directors

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal — Chairman
Mr. Mehernosh B. Kapadia

Ms. Malvika Sinha

Mr. Sujit Kumar Varma

Mr. Ankur Verma

Mr. Anil Kaul — Managing Director

TATA CLEANTECH
CAPITAL LIMITED

Board of Directors

Ms. Varsha Purandare — Chairperson

Mr. Sujit Kumar Varma

Mr. Lodewijk Govaerts

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal

Mr. Manish Chourasia — Managing Director

TATA SECURITIES LIMITED

Board of Directors

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal — Chairman
Mr. Avijit Bhattacharya

Ms. Abonty Banerjee

REGISTERED OFFICE

Tower A, 11th Floor, Peninsula Business Park
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel
Mumbai - 400 013

Tel: +9122 6606 9000

Corporate Identity Number:
U65990MH1991PLC060670
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Snapshot of
Numlbers

/ Book Size Retal?i’loBEME
=22 1,20,940 cr 80%
Total Comprehensive Amongst Top 3
é P Income diversified NBFCs
y 2,975 cr in India
: 90%

@ SSERUIS locations in

& 439 non - metros
AN Customers 80%
@ 3.1 million+ from non - metros
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While it's easy to go with the flow, sometimes riding against
the tide can bring you to newer shores, and lead you to
greater heights.



AWwards

Employee Engagement Awards
Great Place to Work certified - 2023

CSR Awards
Best Practice - The Green Switch by Tata Business Excellence Group
Winner in the Environment category — 5th CSR Journal Excellence Awards 2022

L&D Awards
TISS LeapVault CLO Award “Best Leadership Development Programme — 2022
Best L&D Team of the Year by Transformance

ET BFSI Excellence Award - Excellence in Innovation for
Best Customer Orientation won by Microfinance team

JSW The Times of India 10th Earth Care Awards -
Enterprises in the renewable energy space

Indian Chamber of Commerce
Green Urja Award - Top Financing Institutions for RE & EE, 2022
Top Financing Institutions for EV Transit, 2022

Digital Customer Experience Confex and Awards 2023
Best Contact Centre of the Year (Customer Service)
Best CX Strategy of the Year (Customer Service)
Best Customer Retention Strategy (Loan Against Property)
Best use of Data Analysis in CX (Loan Against Property)
Best use of Omni Channel in CX (Loan Against Security — HNI & Retail)
Digital CX Strategy of the Year (Tata Digital — Qik PL)

Tata Capital has been recognised as one of the
Best BFSI Brands 2023 by The Economic Times

Tata Capital has been recognised as Most Preferred Brands 2022 by Marksmen

Runner-up: Large NBFC and Category of Lending at ASSOCHAM's
17th Annual Summit & Awards on Banking & Financial Sector Lending Companies

Excellence in Real Estate Finance at the
NAREDCO TIMES REAL ESTATE CONCLAVE & ICONS 2023

Risk Management Team of the Year at CRO Leadership Summit & Awards

Best in Class Wealthtech Solution Award at Global Fintech Awards 2022

Audit Excellence — Award at Annual Banking & Finance Audit Conclave, 2023

-
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\Vessage from the
Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

It has been over fifteen years since the foundation of Tata Capital Limited was laid to build a
world-class enterprise in the Indian financial services industry. It gives me immense pleasure to say
that your Company has gone from strength to strength over the past few years and is recognised as
one of the leading NBFCs in the country having crossed the coveted milestone of %1 Lakh Crore
book during the current financial year. While the journey has been challenging, it has been highly
satisfying. We have been on an accelerated growth trajectory for the past few years and feel very
excited about the future.

Last year we witnessed global headwinds and uncertainties at domestic level as the economy
continued to face tremors in the form of the Russia-Ukraine war, supply chain disruptions,
implacable inflationary pressures, monetary tightening, and the unprecedented shake-up in the
start-up ecosystem. However, Indian economy continued to remain a beacon for the rest of the
world. With a supportive government and regulator, backed by a strong digital stack,
ever-improving financial inclusion, significant infrastructure push amidst a supportive monetary and
fiscal policy, I'm quite optimistic that India will continue to remain one of the fastest growing large
economies in the world.

There is no better place to see this optimism coming to fruition than financial services. From the
lows of the pandemic to a sector healthy and ready to support exponential growth, | could not have
imagined a more successful turnaround. | see a far more buoyant and sticky demand for credit
accompanied by early signs of revival in the investment cycle. With much stronger balance sheets,
asset quality no longer the primary concern, and comfortable capital and liquidity position, the
sector has seen unprecedented growth in recent years, particularly across retail and MSME
segments.

NBFCs have continued to thrive and gain
ground with their sharp focus on customers
and technology. And, it's comforting to
witness that over the years Tata Capital has
consolidated its leadership position among
the NBFCs. | take great pride in saying that
we have achieved several "highest-evers”
during the last year. Having said that, let me
present the key performance highlights of
your Company for the financial year 2022-23
(or FY23) on a consolidated basis:

« Crossed %1 Lakh Crore book size mark;
one of the select few private NBFCs to
achieve the landmark till date.

+ Loan book grew by 28% Y-o-Y (+8%
Q-0-Q) to %1,20,940 Crore with Retail +
SME constituting 80% of the total loan
book.

« Highest-ever disbursals in FY23; up by
42% Y-o-Y; crossed 320,000 Crore
quarterly disbursals mark for the 1st time.



+ Highest-ever profit after tax of ¥2,975 Crore;
up by 80% Y-o-Y.

« Highest-ever RoE, including one-time
gains, is 23.0%. Excluding one-time gains,
RoE is 17.3%., up from 15.6% in FY22.

+ Credit costs stood at 0.5% in FY23; lower by
47% on a Y-0-Y basis.

» Lastly, and most important, the asset quality
continues to remain amongst the best in the
industry with GNPA at 1.7% (Mar'22: 1.9%)
and NNPA at 0.4% (Mar'22: 0.6%).

Digital transformation continues to be an area
of continuous focus for Tata Capital. During the
FY23, the organisation continued to invest to
create best-in-class digital platforms and
products. This in turn has enabled Tata Capital
to provide superior and more personalised
customer experiences, greater operational
efficiency across the lending value chain and
become a relevant player in India’'s growing
digital ecosystem.

Your Company has tripled its branch footprint
over the past two years with an objective to
reach deeper markets, in a well-thought-out
strategy to reach and tap the underserved
markets to achieve scale. The Company
continues to invest in future-ready infrastructure
which will give it a solid footing in the years to
come and aspire for more going forward.

Your Company has also taken steps towards
simplifying its corporate structure with a
roadmap set for merging its two operating
subsidiaries — Tata Capital Financial Services
Limited & Tata Cleantech Capital Limited — with
itself, and in the process creating a larger
unified entity with a wider and stronger capital
and asset base, having greater capacity for
conducting its operations more efficiently and
competitively. This shall also help us move
towards 'Listing-ready’ structure aligned with
Scale Based Regulations for shareholder value
maximisation.

Your Company's marketing campaign ‘Palak
Jhapkao, Loan Pao’ was well-received and has
helped garner a significant traffic growth on the
Tata Capital digital assets, furthering our brand
promise — '‘Count on US' - across the board.
Tata Capital was the official partner for the
inaugural edition of the Tata Women's Premier

League launching a much lauded digital & TV
campaign ‘Ek Soch ko Harana Hai’ challenging
the thought process that women cannot play
cricket!

I would like to highlight that any successful
journey is an outcome of multiple elements -
purpose, vision, culture and values — coming
together and becoming more than the sum of
its parts. It's heartening to see your Company
live its purpose of "Responsible financial
partner fulfilling India's aspirations” every day
which is the north star for everything we think,
believe and act upon.

| take this opportunity to congratulate the
outstanding leadership team, senior
management and all my colleagues who have
relentlessly worked towards scripting this
success and will consider this year's excellent
results as a springboard for many more
successful years to come. The unwavering
commitment demonstrated by one and all in
your Company is a testament to this success.
Further, | also thank all our partners and
collaborators who have worked together
diligently to expand our reach and strengthen
our capabilities and co-create win-win
propositions for our customers.

As we step into FY24, | expect some headwinds
such as persistent inflation, prolonged supply
chain disruptions, recessionary fears in
Western & European economies that may
affect exports from India and may potentially
impact India’'s growth outlook. However, | am
quite confident that Tata Capital, now more
than ever, is prepared to weather any
headwinds with a strong capital base and
robust fundamentals. The Company will
continue to focus and invest in right areas and
set up an enterprise which is future-ready,
cultivate a data & innovation-led culture, and
leverage digital and technology to bring delight
to its customers.

Thank you for your continued trust and support.

Yours sincerely,
Mr. Saurabh Agrawal
Chairman, Tata Capital Limited



\Vlessage from the
\Vianaging Director & CEO

Dear Shareholders,

This was a milestone year for Tata Capital and at the outset, | want to congratulate everyone
associated with the Company - We crossed the coveted mark of 31 Lakh Crore Loan Book in the first
half of the year and continued to scale thereon, finally ending the year with a Loan Book in excess of
%1.2 Lakh Crore (up by 28% YoY). While the sector in general has withessed a steady recovery from
the pre-pandemic lows, it's a testament to Tata Capital’s strong execution focus that it is now one of
the fastest growing players within financial services in India.

When we started the year, the broader economy remained under pressure in terms of
macro-headwinds: higher inflation, rising interest rates and global supply chain crisis. We must laud
the regulator’s efforts to maintain the Indian financial services sector on a strong footing, despite
the turmoil in the banking industry worldwide. Indian financial services players have stayed resilient
courtesy the robust regulatory framework put in by the regulator.

During the year, your Company took significant steps towards consolidating leadership position
across products among non-banks and was among the best performing NBFCs in the country. And,
| must say with pride that we continue to do better with each passing year, in terms of scale, growth,
profitability, and book quality. Your Company continues to deliver on all the key performance
metrics and is well on track to become one of the most admired NBFCs in India.

Scaling New Heights, Pushing Boundaries
Let me share some key highlights of our consolidated performance during the year:

» Disbursals grew by 42% YoY to 375,099 Crore led by our investments in digital and focus on
deeper markets.

« Consolidated market position in key
products across both Retail as well as
MSME segments. Share of Retail &
MSME stood at 80%+ of the loan book.

« Margins improved by 20 bps YoY; aided
by high growth and better product mix
despite higher cost of funds.

« Credit cost stood at 0.5% (down by 80
bps YoY), which is amongst the lowest in
the industry.

« Continued to maintain strong asset
quality, which remains the best amongst
peers. As of year-end, the gross NPA & net
NPA stood at 1.7% & 0.4% respectively.

« Achieved highest-ever PAT of 32,975
Crore with a YoY growth of 80%; excluding
certain one-time gains, PAT stood at
32,414 Crore (up by 46% YoY).

« Achieved highest-ever RoE of 23.0%, up
by 740 bps YoY; excluding one-time
gains, the RoE stood at 17.3%.



Now, coming to the key drivers that have taken
your Company from strength to strength and
transformed it into a solid business franchise:

Focus on Scale: In our continuous efforts to
reach a wider set of customers, we have
doubled down on our expansion efforts. Our
branch network has increased by 3x since
Mar-21 to 438 branches as of Mar-23. Your
Company also remains focused on building
value accretive partnerships, strengthening its
digital channels and leveraging alternate data
to grow its customer base while catering to
both - New-to-Company as well as
New-to-Credit — segments. To take advantage
of the market opportunity, we will keep
investing in extending our reach and enhancing
our capabilities.

Accelerated digital transformation: We
firmly believe that the future is digital, and it is
technology that will act as the key differentiator
going forward. Bearing this in mind, your
Company has taken focused efforts to turn
more digital with each passing day. Over 95% of
our customers are now onboarded through
digital platforms. We have also partnered with
100+ new age companies to strengthen our
technologies while focusing on providing
unified customer journeys for both online as
well as assisted channels. We have also worked
on leveraging data and analytics in a big way
across the customer lifecycle, right from
sourcing, cross-selling, credit underwriting and
collections. We remain committed to delivering
best-in-class customer experience and
ensuring customer delight in our day-to-day
operations.

Strong asset quality: In financial services,
balancing quality while growing is a
differentiator and it is this which | believe sets
your Company truly apart from the others. Year
on year, we have been proud to report the
best-in-class asset quality with gross & net NPA
at 1.7% & 0.4%, respectively. Our credit costs are
also among the lowest in the industry. This is a
testimony of our analytics-led credit underwriting
and a strong collections backbone. Even as we
scale up our business across products,
maintaining this level of asset quality will be our
top most priority.

The Brand - 'Tata Capital': This year we
continued to make investments in fortifying our
Brand value and were proud to be associated
as one of the title sponsors for the 1st ever
edition of Women's Premier League. Our

marketing campaign which was centred around
changing the way India thinks about women in
sports — ‘Ek Soch ko Harana Hai' received
overwhelming response. We also launched our
'‘Palak Jhapkao Loan Pao’ campaign during the
year which helped us highlight how meeting
our users' needs within a short time frame is
one of our key goals. We also ran several digital
campaigns to drive our brand promise.

Through all these initiatives, our endeavour
remains to drive home our brand promise to our
customers: COUNT ON US

A Future ready Organisation

Stepping into FY24, while we remain cautious of
the economic headwinds, our belief in India's
growth story and even more so, in that of its
resilient BFSI sector, remains strong. | am sure that
this, coupled with ourlegacy, robust fundamentals,
and TATA values, will help us achieve many more
milestones in the coming years.

This year we have embarked on simplifying our
legal entity structure wherein two of our
subsidiaries — Tata Capital Financial Services
Limited ('TCFSL’) and Tata Cleantech Capital
Limited (‘'TCCL') will merge with the holding
Company i.e., Tata Capital Limited to create a
unified entity with a wider and stronger capital
and asset base. We have filed for necessary
approvals and expect the merger to go through
in FY24.

Like in the past, Tata Capital will be guided by
Tata Group philosophies across all our
businesses. Our ambition to grow stronger will
be anchored by the investments we make in our
people and how we foster a culture of
collaboration and learning across the
organisation. | truly believe that we are in the
most exciting phase of our growth journey and,
as | pen this letter, I'm equally excited as |
envisage what the future holds for us.

As | conclude, | would like to acknowledge the
contribution made by all my colleagues who
have relentlessly worked during the year and
helped us become one of the best performing
NBFCs. | would like to express my gratitude
towards our esteemed Board for their
unwavering support and guidance throughout
this journey. And lastly, | would like to thank our
shareholders for continuing placing their
valuable trust in us.

Yours Sincerely,
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal
Managing Director & CEO, Tata Capital Limited
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BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members,

The Board has pleasure in presenting the 32" Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the
Financial Year (“FY”) ended March 31, 2023.

1.
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BACKGROUND

Tata Capital Limited (“Company” or “TCL”"), the flagship financial services company of the Tata Group,
primarily holds investments in its subsidiaries which are mainly engaged in lending and offering a
wide array of services/products in the financial services sector. TCL is a subsidiary of Tata Sons
Private Limited and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as a Systemically Important
Non-Deposit Accepting Core Investment Company (“CIC”). TCL has been classified as a Middle Layer
NBFC (“NBFC-ML”) as per the RBI Scale Based Regulations. Besides being a holding company, TCL
carries out only such activities as are permitted under the Directions issued by the RBI for CICs, as
amended from time to time. TCL and its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as “Tata

Capital”.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

(X in crore)
Particulars Consolidated Standalone

FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22
Gross Income 13,637.00| 10,311.41 1,353.14 511.89
Less: Finance Costs 6,600.78 4,889.03 304.83 289.70
Net Interest Margin and Other Revenue 7,036.22 5,422.38 1,048.31 222.19
Impairment on Financial Instruments / 581.94 1,083.28 6.21 7.30
Investments
Employee Benefits Expense 1,285.41 889.80 109.43 87.42
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 226.02 275.88 11.27 7.10
Other Expenses 1,152.99 935.34 35.76 17.42
Profit Before Tax 3,789.86 2,238.08 885.64 102.95
Less: Provision for Tax 990.79 546.91 165.13 19.85
Profit After Tax 2,799.07 1,691.17 720.50 83.10
Add: Share of Net Profit of Associates using 146.70 109.64 - -
the equity method
Less: Non-controlling interest (29.13) 152.60 - -
Profit After Tax attributable to owners of 2,974.90 1,648.21 720.50 83.10
the Company
Other comprehensive Income attributable to 1,744 .44 50.63 1,827.90 (0.99)
owners of the Company
Total comprehensive Income attributable to 4,719.34 1,698.84 2,548.40 82.11
owners of the Company
Amount brought forward from previous year 3,214.99 1,838.81 242.34 177.22
Amount available for appropriation 7,934.33 3,537.65 2,790.74 259.33
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(X in crore)

Particulars Consolidated Standalone
FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22 | FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22

Less Appropriations:

Special Reserve Account 650.13 351.13 144.28 16.99
Interim Dividend on Equity Shares (55.42) - 56.26 -
Others (23.57) (28.47) - -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 7,208.67 3,214.99 2,590.20 242.34

Consolidated Results:

Tata Capital’s consolidated book size increased to ¥ 1,20,940 crore as at March 31, 2023 from
% 94,349 crore as at March 31, 2022.

During FY 2022-23, Tata Capital recorded consolidated Total Income of ¥ 13,637 crore as against
% 10,311 crore in FY 2021-22, an increase of about 32%. The Total Income comprised Income from
financing activities of ¥ 12,100 crore (FY 2021-22: ¥ 9,286 crore), Investment Income of X 1,127 crore
(FY 2021-22: % 630 crore) and Other Income of ¥ 410 crore (FY 2021-22: X 395 crore).

The consolidated interest expense for the year was ¥ 6,601 crore (FY 2021-22: ¥ 4,889 crore), an
increase of 35% which was primarily on account of higher cost of funds.

The Consolidated Net Interest Margin and Other Income for the year was ¥ 7,036 crore (FY 2021-22:
% 5,422 crore), an increase of 30% which was primarily on account of increase in book and higher other
income.

Impairment on Investments and Financial Instruments decreased to ¥ 582 crore in FY 2022-23 compared
to ¥ 1,083 crore in FY 2021-22. The consolidated Gross Non-Performing Assets (“GNPA”) showed
decrease from 1.90% in FY 2021-22to0 1.71% in FY 2022-23. The Net Non-Performing Assets (“NNPA”)
also decreased from 0.6% in FY 2021-22 to 0.4% in FY 2022-23. Provision Coverage Ratio (“PCR”)
stood at 77% (FY 2021-22: 71%)

The Operating Expenses (including Employee costs, Depreciation and other expenses) increased by
27% as compared to FY 2021-22.

During the year, Tata Capital’'s Profit After Tax attributable to owners of the Company on a consolidated
basis increased by about 80%, to ¥ 2,975 crore (FY 2021-22: ¥ 1,648 crore).

The consolidated Return on Assets (“RoA”) for FY 2022-23 was 2.9% (FY 2021-22: 2.0%) while the
Return on Equity (“RoE”) was 23% (FY 2021-22: 15.6%).

Standalone Results:

During FY 2022-23, TCL recorded Gross Income of% 1,353.14 crore (FY 2021-22:% 511.89 crore) Profit
after Tax during the year was X 720.50 crore (FY 2021-22: X 83.10 crore).

SHARE CAPITAL
The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company was ¥ 35,60,11,98,410 as on March 31, 2023.
During FY 2022-23, the Company issued and allotted 4,39,52,097 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each at a

premium of ¥ 125.10 per Equity Share, aggregating I 593.80 crore, on a ‘Rights Basis’ to the existing
Equity Shareholders.
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During FY2022-23, consequent to the Put Option exercised by the Preference Shareholders, Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares (“CRPS”) aggregating ¥ 40.19 crore were redeemed. Accordingly,
the paid-up Preference Share Capital as on March 31, 2023 was ¥ 1,069.72 crore. The details of CRPS
redeemed are available at Page No. 324 of the Annual Report.

As per Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), CRPS have been classified and reported under
borrowings (other than debt securities) in the Standalone Financial Statements.

4, DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company declared Interim Dividend on the CRPS for the following tranches
for the period April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023, on March 29, 2023, as under:

Tranche(s)* No. of CRPS | Dividend Rate Dividend Amount

(%) p.a. including TDS (In %)

T, U, V, W, AF, AG, AH, Al, AJ, AK, AL, 69,26,000 7.50 51,94,50,000
AM and AN

XandY 14,09,500 7.33 10,33,16,350
Z 6,45,500 7.15 4,61,53,250
AA, AB, AC and AD 13,16,250 7.10 9,34,53,750
AE 4,00,000 7.75 3,10,00,000

Total 79,33,73,350

*CRPS on which Put Option has not been exercised or was not applicable.

Since the Company has paid Dividend to the CRPS holders for the period April 1, 2022 to
March 31, 2023, by way of an Interim Dividend, the Directors do not recommend any final dividend on
the CRPS.

Further, consequent upon the exercise of Put Option by the Shareholders, CRPS of the nominal value
aggregating ¥ 40.20 crore were redeemed during the year and accordingly, Interim Dividend aggregating
% 96,18,664 (including TDS) was paid on these CRPS for the period from April 1, 2022 up to the date
of redemption. The details of Interim Dividend paid on redemption are as under:

Tranche(s)* Dividend Rate No. of Redemption Date Dividend Amount

(%) CRPS including TDS (InX)

AB, AC and AD 7.10 4,01,950 August 01, 2022 96,18,664

*partial redemption consequent upon exercise of Put option by the shareholders.

The Directors of your Company recommend a final dividend of Re. 0.21 per Equity Share of ¥ 10 each
for the FY2022-23, subject to approval of the Members.

5. OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY, ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

26

5.1 Structure of Business Operations at Tata Capital

TCL is primarily a holding company, holding investments in its subsidiaries and other group
companies and carries out only such activities, including advising and/or management of private
equity funds, as are permitted under the Directions / Guidelines issued by the RBI for CICs, from
time to time. All the other operating businesses are carried on by the subsidiaries of TCL.
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The financial services sector in India, as also globally, is highly regulated. TCL and its subsidiaries
are subject to regulations by authorities such as the RBI, the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI”), the National Housing Bank (“NHB”), the Monetary Authority of Singapore (“MAS”),
the Financial Conduct Authority, UK , the Association of Mutual Funds of India (“AMFI”) and the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (“IRDA”).

A detailed discussion on the Private Equity Funds and TCL'’s subsidiaries is set out in the below
paras.

5.2 Private Equity
5.2.1 Domestic Funds

The Company has set up six Private Equity Funds in India, viz. Tata Capital Growth Fund |, Tata
Capital Growth Fund Il, Tata Capital Healthcare Fund I, Tata Capital Healthcare Fund Il, Tata
Capital Innovations Fund and Tata Capital Special Situations Fund - Trust (collectively referred to
as “Funds”). These Funds have been registered with SEBI as Venture Capital Funds / Alternative
Investment Funds. The Company has sponsored these Funds and acts as their Investment
Manager. The aggregate Assets Under Management of these Funds is ¥ 2,698 crore, as at
March 31, 2023.

The performance of the above Funds is reviewed below:
i) Tata Capital Growth Fund | (“TCGF I”) and Tata Capital Growth Fund Il (“TCGF II”)

TCGF | was set up with a mandate to make private equity growth capital investments in
companies that have a significant portion of their operations in India. TCGF I's investment
focus themes are Urbanisation, Discrete Manufacturing and Strategic Services. The
Fund typically targets stakes in portfolio companies with Board representation and other
significant shareholder rights.

TCGF | has provided growth capital funding to industry leading companies, with an average
deal size of approximately ¥ 40 crore. TCGF | declared its final close in February 2011, with
commitments of ¥ 339 crore, of which, ¥ 253 crore was invested in six portfolio companies.
TCGF I's commitment period ended on November 9, 2015. The term of the Fund was
extended to September 30, 2023 with approval of TCGF I's Investor Advisory Board and
requisite majority of Contributors.

During the year, the Fund participated in the buyback of equity shares announced by Tata
Technologies Limited (“TTL”) and tendered 401,003 equity shares which were bought
back at a price of ¥ 1,982 per share. In March 2023, with a view to listing it's shares on
the stock exchanges by way of an Offer for Sale (“OFS”) TTL filed its DRHP with SEBI.
TCGF | expects to tender up to one third of its holding in the proposed OFS.

As at March 31, 2023, the TVPI multiple (Total Value, including Distributions, to Paid in
Capital), after providing for estimated manager incentive is 2.78x.

TCGF Il is the Successor fund to TCGF |I. TCGF |l declared its final close on
January 15, 2021 and has commitments of ¥ 1,235 crore (includes commitments of USD
118 million). The Company has committed I 362.9 crore as Sponsor commitment to
TCGF Il. TCGF Il has drawn down 54% of its commitments of which I 591 crores was
invested in 5 portfolio companies. During the year, TCGF Il divested 3,800,100 equity
shares held in in Star Health & Allied Insurance Company Ltd for ¥ 270.64 crore.
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iii)

Tata Capital Healthcare Fund | (“TCHF I”) and Tata Capital Healthcare Fund Il (“TCHF I1”)

TCHF | was set up to target long-term capital appreciation through private equity growth-
capital investments in healthcare companies involved in pharmaceutical, contract research/
manufacturing, hospital services, medical devices, diagnostic and other healthcare
segments. TCHF I's investment strategy is predicated on high growth consumption and
competency themes within the Indian healthcare sector, driven by increasing per capita
disposable income, rising urbanisation, growing health awareness, increasing chronic and
life-style oriented disease pattern and growth in domestic healthcare infrastructure. The
Fund typically targets stakes in portfolio companies with Board representation and other
significant shareholder rights. TCHF | has provided growth capital funding to companies
with an average deal size of approximately ¥ 35 crore. TCHF | declared its final close in
April 2012, with commitments of ¥ 319 crore, of which, ¥ 245 crore was invested in seven
portfolio companies. TCHF I's commitment period ended on July 13, 2015. The term of the
Fund was extended to June 30, 2023 with approval of TCHF I's Investor Advisory Board
and requisite majority of Contributors.

As at March 31, 2023, the TVPI multiple (Total Value, including Distributions, to Paid in
Capital) of TCHF |, after providing for estimated manager incentive was 1.87x.

TCHF Ilis the Successor fund to TCHF I. TCHF |l declared its final close on March 11, 2022
with investor commitments of ¥ 955 crore (includes commitments of USD 53.25 million).
The Company has committed I 140 crore as Sponsor commitment to TCHF II. TCHF Il
has drawn down 37% of commitments of which ¥ 322 crore was invested in 5 portfolio
companies.

Tata Capital Innovations Fund (“TCIF”)

TCIF is a sector agnostic venture capital fund and invests in early stage companies,
offering technology based solutions for Indian as well as global markets. TCIF focuses on
investments which have a potential to create new growth opportunities, increase efficiency,
bring affordability and accessibility to the industry or change the way business is conducted.
The Fund typically targets stakes in portfolio companies with Board representation and other
significant shareholder rights. TCIF declared its final close in April 2012, with commitments
of ¥ 287 crore, of which, ¥ 218 crore has been invested in seven portfolio companies as
at March 31, 2023. The term of the Fund was extended to January 29, 2024 with approval
of the Fund’s Investor Advisory Board and requisite majority of Contributors.

During the year, TCIF divested 8,172 equity shares held in Sea6 Energy Private Limited
for ¥ 26.89 crore.

As at March 31, 2022, the TVPI multiple (Total Value, including Distributions, to Paid in
Capital) of TCIF is 0.53x.

Tata Capital Special Situations Fund (“TCSSF”)

TCSSF focuses on investing in turnaround opportunities. The Fund typically targets stakes
in portfolio companies with Board representation and other significant shareholder rights.
Of the aggregate drawn amount of ¥ 265 crore, ¥ 222 crore was invested in four portfolio
companies. TCSSF’s commitment period ended on March 31, 2014 and its term ends on
December 4, 2023. During the year, 3,000,000 TCSSF divested cumulative redeemable
preference shares held in TEMA Limited for ¥ 3 crore.

As at March 31, 2023, the TVPI multiple (Total Value, including Distributions, to Paid in
Capital) of TCSSF is 1.16x.
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5.2.2 Overseas Funds

The Overseas Funds, viz. Tata Capital Growth Fund Limited Partnership (“TCGFLP”), Tata
Capital Growth Fund Il LP (“TCGFIILP”), Tata Capital HBM Healthcare Fund | Limited Partnership
(“TCHHFLP”), Tata Capital Healthcare Fund Il (Feeder) LP (“TCHFIILP”) and Tata Opportunities
Fund Limited Partnership (“TOF”), are based in Singapore.

The Company’s step down subsidiary in Singapore, Tata Capital Advisors Pte. Ltd is the
Investment Manager for TCGFLP, TCGFIILP, TCHHFLP, TCHFIILP and TOF. Overseas Funds
accept commitments only from overseas investors. The aggregate investor commitments raised
by the Overseas Funds as at March 31, 2023 were US$ 888 million.

TCGFLP declared its final close in November 2011 with commitments of US$ 167 million, of which,
approximately 86% has been drawn down and US$ 125 million has been invested in portfolio
companies. During the year, the Fund participated in the buyback of equity shares announced
by Tata Technologies Limited (“TTL”) and tendered 802,004 equity shares which were bought
back at a price of ¥ 1,982 per share. TCGFIILP is a feeder fund to TCGF II. TCGFIILP declared
its final close on January 15, 2021 with commitments of US$ 108 million.

TCHHFLP declared its final close in January 2016 with commitments of US$ 15 million, of
which, approximately 99% has been drawn down and US$ 11 million has been invested in
portfolio companies. TCHFIILP is a feeder fund to TCHF Il and has declared its final close on
March 11, 2022 with commitments of US$ 53 million.

TOF declared its final close in March 2013, with commitments of US$ 545 miillion, of which, over
US $ 485 million (89%) has been drawn down as at March 31, 2023 and over US$ 386 million
has been invested in portfolio companies.

The Company has a co-investment arrangement with TOF, whereby the Company has a
commitment to co-invest the Indian Rupee equivalent of an amount of up to US $ 50 million
alongside TOF, subject to regulatory restrictions.

5.3 Review of Subsidiaries and Associates
5.3.1 Subsidiaries:

As on March 31, 2023, the Company had the following subsidiaries, brief details of whose
performance are given below:

i) Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (“TCFSL”)

TCFSL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, registered with the RBI as a
Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company
(“NBFC-ND-SI").

TCFSL’s main areas of business include Retail Finance, SME and Commercial Finance. In
the Retail Finance space, TCFSL offers a wide range of Loans, such as Auto Loans (Used
Car Loans and Two Wheeler Loans), Construction Equipment and Commercial Vehicle
Loans, Business Loans, Loans Against Property, Personal Loans, Consumer Durables
Loans, Loans Against Securities and micro finance.

In the SME and Commercial Finance segment, TCFSL specializes in product offerings
ranging from Term Loans, Working Capital Term Loans, Channel Finance, Bill Discounting,
Equipment Finance, Leasing Solutions, Lease Rental Discounting, Promoter Finance, Loan
Against Securities, Structured Products and factoring.
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iii)

TCFSL’s portfolio increased by ¥ 15,690 crore from ¥ 56,169 crore in FY 2021-22 to
% 71,859 crore in FY 2022-23. TCFSL’'s Profit Before Tax was ¥ 1,853 crore
(FY 2021-22: % 1,080 crore) and the Profit After Tax for the year increased by about 69%
to ¥ 1,383 crore (FY 2021-22: ¥ 817 crore).

The consolidated Profit After Tax, after accounting for share in Profits of Associates for
FY 2022-23, increased by 69 % to X 1,382 crore, as compared toX 818 crore in FY 2021-22.

In FY 2022-23, the Gross and Net Non-Performing Assets (“NPA”) stood at 2.0% and 0.3%
as compared to 2.2% and 0.5% in FY 2021-22, respectively.

Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited (“TCHFL”)

TCHFL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and is registered as a Housing
Finance Company with the NHB to carry on housing finance activities. TCHFL primarily
offers Home Loans and Affordable Housing Finance Loans, Loans Against Property and
Loans to Developers for constructing Residential and Commercial premises.

TCHFL'’s loan portfolio stood at ¥ 38,617 crore as on March 31, 2023 (¥ 30,150 crore as
on March 31, 2022). TCHFL's Profit Before Tax was ¥ 1,101 crore (FY 2021-22: ¥ 760
crore) and the Profit After Tax for the year increased by 44% to ¥ 821 crore (FY 2021-22:
% 569 crore).

In FY 2022-23, the Gross and Net NPA stood at 1.55% and 0.6% as compared to 1.60%
and 0.7%, in FY 2021-22, respectively.

Tata Cleantech Capital Limited (“TCCL”)

TCCL s a joint venture between TCL and International Finance Corporation, Washington
D.C., USA, with equity holding in the ratio of 80.50:19.50 respectively.

TCCL is registered with the RBI as an Infrastructure Finance Company and is engaged
in the business of providing cash flow based finance and advisory services for projects
in Renewable Energy, Energy Efficiency, Waste Management, Water Management and
Infrastructure Finance.

TCCL’s portfolio increased by ¥ 2,634 crore from X 7,830 crore in FY 2021-22 to
% 10,464 crore in FY 2022-23. TCCL'’s Profit Before Tax was ¥ 371 crore (FY 2021-22:
% 269 crore) and the Profit After Tax increased by about 37% to ¥ 279 crore (FY 2021-22:
< 204 crore).

In FY 2022-23 , the Gross and Net NPAs stood at 0.5% and 0.2% as compared to 0.8%
and 0.5%, in FY 2021-22, respectively.

Tata Securities Limited (“Tata Securities”)

Tata Securities is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, currently engaged in the
business of distribution of Mutual Fund units in the capacity of an AMFI registered distributor.
Tata Securities has been empanelled with several Asset Management Companies operating
in India. Tata Securities is a member of BSE Limited registered in the cash segment and
of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”) registered in the capital market,
futures and options and currency derivatives segments. Tata Securities is a Depository
Participant of Central Depository Services (India) Limited and of National Securities
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Depository Limited and is also registered with SEBI as a Research Analyst. Tata Securities
is registered with Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority (“PFRDA”) to act
as a Point of Presence-Sub Equity (“POP-SE”) under National Pension System (“NPS”)
for HDFC Pension Management Co Ltd).

Tata Securities ventured into Digital Wealth Business in March 2020 through the launch of
Moneyfy application to distribute mutual funds and other financial and investment products
to cater the millennial tech savvy population of India.

During the year under review, Tata Securities reported a Gross Income of ¥ 4.69 crore
(FY 2021-22:% 5.78 crore) and Loss of ¥ 15.21 crore (Loss for FY 2021-22: % 11.72 crore).

Tata Capital Pte. Ltd., (“TCPL”), Singapore and its subsidiaries, viz. Tata Capital
Advisors Pte. Ltd. (“TCAPL”), Singapore and Tata Capital Plc. (“TCPLC”), UK

TCPL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCL, carries out the business of proprietary investments
and fund management, either on its own or through its subsidiaries.

TCAPL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCPL, holds a Capital Markets Services (“CMS”)
license under the Securities and Futures Act of Singapore, issued by the MAS for conducting
regulated fund management activities. TCAPL acts as an Investment Manager to the
offshore Private Equity Funds set up by TCPL.

TCPLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of TCPL had been, since incorporation on
10 November 2009, carrying on the regulated activity of providing advisory and fund-
raising services with a focus on cross border mergers and acquisitions, involving clients
based in India and the ASEAN region as well as in the UK and Continental Europe. The
Company also supported Tata Asset Management Limited since April 2019 for their foray
into the UK and Europe which ceased in July 2021 following which TCPLC surrendered its
Financial Conduct Authority (the “FCA”) Part 4A Permissions. During the year, the Board
deliberated on the future potential of TCPLC and concluded that there was no merit in
continuing this entity. Therefore, on 9 August 2022, the Board resolved to put TCPLC into
Members Voluntary liquidation as a solvent entity and was placed into formal liquidation
on 28 March 2023.

During the year under review, TCPL recorded a consolidated Gross Income of US$ 11
million i.e. ¥ 85 crore (FY 2021-22: US$ 16 million i.e. T 117 crore). For FY 2022-23, Profit
Before Tax was at US$ 3 million i.e. ¥ 21 crore (FY 2021-22: US$ 11 million i.e. ¥ 82 crore)
and Profit After Tax was at US$ 3 million i.e. ¥ 21 crore (FY 2021-22: US$ 9 million i.e.
% 70 crore) [US$ amount translated at ¥ 80.2213, the annual average exchange rate for
FY 2022-23].

Other Subsidiaries

In addition to the above subsidiaries, the following entities are also treated as subsidiaries
of the Company, as per the applicable Accounting Standards:

i. Tata Capital General Partners Limited Liability Partnership, a partnership formed in
Singapore to act as a General Partner and manage the Tata Capital Growth Fund
Limited Partnership.

ii. Tata Capital Healthcare General Partners Limited Liability Partnership, a partnership
formed in Singapore to act as a General Partner and manage the Tata Capital HBM
Healthcare Fund | Limited Partnership.
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iii. Tata Opportunities General Partners Limited Liability Partnership, a partnership
formed in Singapore to act as a General Partner and manage the Tata Opportunities
Fund Limited Partnership.

iv. Tata Capital Growth Il General Partners Limited Liability Partnership, a partnership
formed in Singapore to act as a General Partner and manage the Tata Capital Growth
Fund Il Limited Partnership.

V. Tata Capital Healthcare Il General Partners Limited Liability Partnership, a partnership
formed in Singapore to act as a General Partner and manage the Tata Capital
Healthcare Il (Feeder) Limited Partnership.

5.3.2 Associates/Subsidiaries:

As at March 31, 2023, the Company had, as per its Consolidated Financial Statements, total
investments of ¥ 595 crore (FY 2021-22: ¥ 1,066 crore) in associate companies.

A separate statement, containing the salient features of the Financial Statements of the subsidiaries
and associates of the Company, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) and the applicable Accounting Standards, in the prescribed Form No. AOC-1, is included
in the Annual Report at Page Nos. 268 to 270.

5.3.3 Other Investments:

As at March 31, 2023, the Company had, as per its Consolidated Financial Statements, other
investments of ¥ 12,659 crore (FY 2021-22: % 6,780 crore) comprising of equity shares, mutual
funds, debentures, government securities and Treasury bills.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Act, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company are included in the Annual Report. A separate statement containing the salient features of
the Financial Statements of its subsidiaries and associates in the prescribed Form No. AOC-1, is also
included in the Annual Report at Page Nos. 268 to 270. The said Financial Statements are also available
for inspection on the website of the Company at www.tatacapital.com under Investor Information tab.

FINANCE

During FY 2022-23, the Company met its funding requirements through issue of Commercial Papers
and Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCD”). During the year, the Company had not issued
any NCDs on a private placement basis. The aggregate debt of the Company outstanding as at
March 31, 2023 was ¥ 4,394 crore, including CRPS at amortised cost of ¥ 1,070 crore which has been
classified as borrowings as per Ind AS. Out of total borrowings, ¥ 2,950 crore is payable within one year.
The Debt Equity ratio of the Company as at March 31, 2023 was 0.62 times.

The Company has been regular in repayment of its borrowings and payment of interest thereon.
On a consolidated basis, the Company had borrowings aggregating ¥ 1,13,336 crore as at

March 31, 2023 (FY 2021-22: ¥ 86,220 crore), which includes CRPS at amortised cost of ¥ 1,070
(FY 2021-22:% 1,110 crore).
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1.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under review, rating agencies reaffirmed/issued ratings to the Company, as under:

NATURE OF SECURITIES RATING AGENCY |RATING

Commercial Papers CRISIL and ICRA |CRISIL A1+ and [ICRA] A1+

Unsecured NCDs and Bank Facilities | CRISIL CRISIL AAA/Stable

Unsecured NCDs INDIA RATINGS [ICRA] AAA/Stable and IND AAA/
and ICRA Stable

CRPS CRISIL CRISIL AAA/Stable

RISK MANAGEMENT

Tata Capital has built a robust risk management framework with strong risk fundamentals and continues
to monitor the internal and external risks arising out of macro-economic factors, regulatory changes and
geo-political scenario. The Board of Directors has set the tone at the top by laying down and approving
the strategic plans and objectives for Risk Management and Risk Philosophy. The Risk Management
Committee of the Board has the responsibility relating to monitoring and reviewing risks.

A comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Framework has been adopted across Tata
Capital which uses defined Key Risk Indicators based on quantitative and qualitative factors. A
two-dimensional quantitative data management tool - Heat Map — has been implemented, which
enables the management to have a comprehensive view of 11 identified key risk areas based on their
probability and impact. These are Credit Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity Risk, Process, People, Outsourcing,
Technology, Business Continuity, Compliance & Governance, Cyber Security and Reputation Risk. The
Key Risk Indicators (KRIs), as part of the ERM Framework are aligned with the strategic objectives and
business developments.

Changes in internal and external operating environment, digitalization, technological advancements
and agile way of working have increased the significance of Fraud, Information & Cyber Security and
Operational Risks. At Tata Capital there is continued focus on increasing operational resilience and
mitigation of these risks.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Management has laid down set of standards, processes and structure which enables it to implement
internal financial controls across the organization with reference to financial statements and such
controls are adequate and are operating effectively. Internal Finance control framework has been
established in line with the Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) and Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).

During FY 2022-23, testing was conducted basis process walkthrough and review of samples as per
documented controls in the Risk & Control matrix. Testing was done for each of the controls confirming
the existence and operating effectiveness of controls over financial reporting. Review was performed
on design, adequacy and operating effectiveness of the controls.

During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for inefficiency or
inadequacy of such controls.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT

The Company has continued to invest in cutting edge technologies to drive its core system modernization,
digital and data initiatives. The Company has upgraded its retail core lending system to provide new
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and advanced functionalities which will further optimise and improve the business performance. The
Company continues to build additional integrations with FinTech partners to enhance its customer
offerings. This is in line with the Company’s endeavour to deliver best in class customer experience
and drive operational efficiencies.

The Company is in the process of launching a unified Credit Management System (CMS) to provide
Industry-leading, agile, comprehensive digital lending platform that caters to all business segments
of Commercial Finance Division (CFD) and empowers the Company in its growth and transformation
journey. This serves as a single Loan Origination System (LOS) which processes Customer Credit
profile data and encapsulates reusable and configurable components to enable quick Go-to-Market.

The IT Policies and Procedures are reviewed and updated periodically to replicate the changes as in
real time and remain in line with regulatory guidelines.

DIGITAL PLATFORMS & ANALYTICS

Digital transformation continues to be an area of continuous focus for Tata Capital. During the
FY 22-23, the Company has continued to invest to create best-in-class digital platforms and products.
This in turn has enabled us to provide superior and more personalized customer experiences, greater
operational efficiency across the lending value chain and become a relevant player in India’s growing
digital ecosystem.

During FY22-23, Tata Capital enhanced its digital presence through the launch of a new and improved
customer facing website with an improved customer interface, a smarter search tool, industry first
features such as dark mode and reimagined retail loan journeys. The website which caters to all retail
and corporate customer segments also witnessed a significant increase in customer traffic during the
financial year. In addition, the Company launched a new omni-channel marketing automation platform
which will enable real-time customer engagement across the loan origination servicing. The key features
of this tool such as customer journey orchestration using multiple channels, real time nudges, detailed
insights & analytics of campaigns executed and App/Web integration for engagement and retention
activities will increase our marketing productivity and also ensure a far more personalized experience
for our customers.

At Tata Capital, it has been our endeavour to enhance self-service by providing customers with a range
of channels and platforms to choose from for all their servicing needs. Currently, over 75% of customer
service interactions take place through digital platforms. Customers can interact across channels
including web, mobile applications, WhatsApp, chat-bot and voice-bot to name a few. Our chat based
servicing channel (TIA) witnessed a significant increase in usage during the year. More than 8 lakh
interactions per month take place on TIA- voice and chat-based platform.

We have introduced several industry-best customer journeys to increase the share of direct-to-customer
business and to ensure a more seamless customer experience. The share of business from direct
and digital channels has increased multi-fold last year. Further, the Company has launched digital-
only products and services across customer segments. For example, Moneyfy is a digital only wealth
management application which allows customers to carry out all their investments in an instant manner.
Further, a new seamless journey was launched for customers seeking small business loans. Almost all
customer processes starting from on-boarding to underwriting to disbursements are done in a paperless
manner for retail loans. Similarly, for SME and corporate customers, a new loan origination system was
launched which will simplify the customer journey further and enable quicker processing and sanction
of loans.

In line with the overall focus on digital transformation, the use artificial intelligence and machine learning
continued across domains. Several machine learning based scorecards are in use for underwriting as
well as debt servicing of loans. Use of these advanced algorithms has helped us assess creditworthiness
and mitigate risks, make faster and accurate lending decisions and to set up a more efficient debt
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servicing strategy. In addition, our use of Robotic Process Automation (RPA) for repetitive tasks in our
operations shops has reached a high level of maturity. RPA has now been implemented for almost all
centralized processes. This has improved the overall operational efficiency and in turn leading to cost
reduction. The use of digital channels for collection of EMI payments also saw an increase over the
year, backed by launch of new payment modes including QR code based payments and UPI payments.
Currently more than 90% of collections take place through digital channels.

We also continue to collaborate with FinTechs for business growth and enablement of customer journeys
and processes. During the year, the business generated from partnerships has grown significantly. In
addition, Tata Capital is integrated with more than 100 plus FinTech partners across multiple domains
to enhance service and ensure seamless digital processes.

Using data analytics and creating multiple touchpoints for customers helped in building a better consumer
connect. Keeping data analytics at the core of our strategy aided in anticipating customer needs and
improving cross-sell capabilities. We have a dedicated team of data science and data engineering experts
who enable seamless data-led personalised customer service delivery. Giving personalised offers for
instant loan applications, pre-approved loan offers, scorecard-based underwriting, pre-delinquency
models are cases where we leveraged data analytics for real-time decisions and give better customer
experience.

In this journey of digitization, Tata Capital will continue to focus on building best in class digital platforms
to bring customer delight, enhance operational efficiency and improve productivity. We will continue to
create new benchmarks by building capabilities, products and services which will make us a financier
of choice across customer segments.

TATA CAPITAL JOURNEY OF EXCELLENCE
Tata Business Excellence Model

Tata Capital continues to enhance its capabilities and processes in keeping with market and regulatory
changes, using the framework of the Tata Business Excellence Model (“TBEM”) (based on Baldridge
Criteria, USA), which covers aspects of Leadership and Governance, Strategic Planning, Customer
Focus, Measurement, Analysis and Knowledge Management, Workforce Focus and Operations Focus.
Tata Capital had participated in its eighth TBEM external assessment conducted by the Tata Business
Excellence Group a division of Tata Sons Private Limited, between July to November 2022 and was
placed in the 650-700 score band, which indicates the level of “ Industry Leader” with an absolute
score of 664 (TBEM score in 2020 was 624). This reflects a significant improvement in the journey of
Excellence.

The assessment provided Tata Capital with important granular feedback in terms of its current strengths
and opportunities for improvements to work upon. Key strengths indicated in the TBEM 2022 Assessment
were the (i) Organization’s alignment with its Vision and the building of capability and structure for
achieving the Vision (ii) Focus on building a quality book and (iii) Risk Management, Internal Audit and
Governance mechanisms.

Tata Capital has implemented many improvement initiatives involving people, process, digitization and
technology over the last few years. These include process simplification, re-engineering and automation
for improving Tata Capital’'s operational focus in order to enhance customer satisfaction and improve
internal efficiencies with an objective to gain a competitive advantage. Many practices of Tata Capital
have been recognized as Group wide Best Practices consistently in the last many years.

Data Excellence — DATOM Framework

During the FY23, Tata Capital also undertook its second Data Excellence Assessment (the first was in
February 2020). This is based on DATOM (Data & Analytics Target Operating Model) framework of Tata
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Consultancy Services Limited. DATOM framework enables organizations assess the maturity of their
Data & Analytics capabilities and establish an effective Operating Model and set up Data & Analytics
programs to fulfil their business objectives and goals. The Organization maturity is assessed across 4
KRAs — (1) Data, (2) Technology, (3) Process and (4) People. These 4 KRAs are further sub divided
into 23 sub KRAs with a detailed focus on various dimensions.

Tata Capital scored 3.4 on a 5 point Global Benchmarking scale. This places Tata Capital in 75+th
percentile.

THE TATA CAPITAL BRAND

Tata Capital has been nurturing its brand promise ‘Count on Us’, over the last three years. The brand
continues to build on commitment of delivering on promises to ensure consistency, transparency and
quick solutions.

Having moved to an ‘always-on’ media strategy, this financial year saw various digital, social media and
conventional media campaigns. The brand remains focused on a media mix of conventional campaigns
at regular intervals, supplemented with social media and digital branding through the year to elevate
overall equity and consideration.

‘Palak Jhapkao Loan Pao’, the main Brand Campaign for this financial year had a series of short films
themed around digital, seamless and quick loans offered by Tata Capital. The campaign had 4 product
films, each based on an insight from the product category. This was followed by a 2nd burst with the
addition of a digital product campaign for Loan Against Securities (LAS). The objective was to reach
the untapped audiences with a new product solution of ‘Digital LAS’.

Tata Capital was also very proud to associate with the inaugural edition of the Tata Women’s Premier
League (WPL) 2023. We hope that this partnership with WPL will help provide the opportunity to promote
women'’s cricket and help build a team of cricketing champions. Alongside various on-ground branding
integrations, the brand was also present on digital and TV media with the launch of the ‘Ek Soch Ko
Harana Hai’ WPL campaign film.

Two other digital product campaigns for Moneyfy and Home Loans were launched this year. These
campaigns had a two-pronged objective of building brand salience and reaching relevant ‘intender
audiences’ creating an uptake on traffic from the campaigns, as well as the organic traffic.

The brand could also leverage 2 topical campaigns on ‘Mother’s Day’ and ‘Ganesh Chaturthi’ on Social
Media. Furthermore, an influencer led education series was also launched in the last quarter to reach out
to younger audiences. Social Media also contributes in a immense way on all things that get executed
in a financial year.

In the years to follow, the brand will continue to raise the bar on marketing activities with newer
associations and possibilities. It will remain predisposed to social media and digital media campaigns
to connect with immediate prospective audiences, while using conventional media for wider reach
objectives.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) is deeply rooted in the Tata Group’s business philosophy laid
down by its Founder, Mr. Jamsetji N. Tata over a century ago. The Group companies have a sense of
responsibility towards making use of their existing resources and knowledge to not only make profits
but also solve social and environmental issues.

Tata Capital too follows the Group’s belief that our society can truly progress if every individual is included
and empowered in the Journey of development. To guide us in this journey, the Company has a well-
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defined CSR policy which outlines the thrust areas of development viz. Education, Skill Development,
Health and Climate Action as adopted by the CSR Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

The CSR policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website:
https://www.tatacapital.com/content/dam/tata-capital/pdf/footer/TCL-CSR%20Policy.pdf

During FY 2022-23, Tata Capital has spent an aggregate amount of ¥ 3603.57 lakh on CSR activities
in projects and programs covered under Schedule VII of the Act.

The CSR budget for the Company (standalone) was X 2.57 lakh, this being two percent of the average
net profit of the Company in the three immediately preceding financial years, calculated as per Section
198 of the Act, read with the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014. The budget was spent towards a
project covered under Schedule VIl to the Act, as recommended by the CSR Committee of the Board and
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed
herewith as Annexure ‘A’

To conceptualize and implement the projects, Tata Capital follows a robust process, including appraising
and selecting technically sound NGOs, planning the project based on baseline assessment, creating
a project plan for implementation and monitoring and evaluation mechanisms. This helps to bring the
desired positive and measurable results for the target beneficiaries.

Additionally, the Company adheres to the Tata Group’s Tata Affirmative Action Program based on the
framework defined by Confederation of Indian Industries. The framework focuses on upliftment of
Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes and identifies 4Es as key areas of developmenti.e. Education,
Employability, Employment and Entrepreneurship. In addition to the 4Es, Tata Capital also adheres to
‘Essentials’ as another category to provide for basic services like shelter, water and electricity.

COMPLIANCE

The Company is registered with the RBI as a CIC. The RBI vide its notification dated October 22, 2021
has introduced an integrated regulatory framework for NBFCs under “Scale Based Regulation (SBR):
A Revised Regulatory Framework for NBFCs”. The SBR framework encompasses different facets of
regulation of NBFCs covering capital requirements, governance standards, prudential regulation, etc.
Under SBR, NBFCs are divided into four layers viz., top layer, upper layer, middle layer and base layer
based on the size, activity, and perceived riskiness. The Company is in the middle layer (NBFC-ML).
The Company shall continue to ensure compliance with all the requirements applicable to NBFC-ML
under SBR within the prescribed timelines. Further, the Company has complied with and continues to
comply with all applicable laws, rules, circulars and regulations, including the Master Direction — Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“RBI Directions”), as amended from time to
time, and it does not carry on any activity other than those permitted by the RBI for CICs.

The NCDs issued by the Company on a private placement basis are listed on the National Stock Exchange
of India Limited. Accordingly, the Company has also complied with and continues to comply with SEBI
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to
time. Further, SEBI vide its notification no. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2021/47, issued on September 7, 2021,
amended the SEBI Listing Regulations and made Regulations 15 to 27 applicable to the Debt Listed
Companies having an outstanding value of listed Non-Convertible debt securities of ¥ 500 crore and
above i.e. High Value Debt Listed Entity (“‘HVDLE”). Accordingly, Company has been classified as a
HVDLE and complied with the aforementioned Regulations applicable to the Company.
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DEPOSITS

The Company did not hold any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any
public deposits during the year under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The provisions of Section 186 of the Act pertaining to investment and lending activities are not applicable
to the Company since the Company is an NBFC whose principal business is acquisition of securities.

Details of guarantees and/or security in connection with loans to other bodies corporate or persons
as covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act, are given in Note No. 21 to the Standalone
Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of
Directors, the Members of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company held
on March 29, 2023, approved the re-appointment of Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal (DIN: 00057333) as the
Managing Director & CEO of the Company, for a further period of five years commencing from
April 1, 2023 up to March 31, 2028.

Further, based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of
Directors approved the appointment of Mr. Vadalur Subramanian Radhakrishnan (DIN: 08064705) and
Mr. Mathew Cyriac (DIN: 01903606) as Additional Directors and Independent Directors of the Company
for an initial term of three years with effect from March 30, 2023, subject to approval of the Members
of the Company at the ensuing AGM. The Members of the Company may refer to the accompanying
Notice of the AGM for the brief Resume of Mr. Radhakrishnan and Mr. Cyriac.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company,
Ms. Aarthi Subramanian (DIN: 07121802), Non-Executive Director, is liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing AGM and is eligible for re-appointment.

Pursuant to the ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy adopted by the Company under the RBI Directions for CICs, the
Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declaration from Ms. Subramanian for her re-appointment,
as a Director of the Company which has been taken on record by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors, viz. Ms. Varsha Purandare
(DIN: 05288076), Ms. Malvika Sinha (DIN: 08373142), Mr. Vadalur Subramanian Radhakrishnan
(DIN: 08064705) and Mr. Mathew Cyriac (DIN: 01903606) stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing
Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have also confirmed that
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that
could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite
qualifications, experience and expertise and that they hold the highest standards of integrity.
In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the data bank
of Independent Directors created and maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Eleven (11) meetings of the Board were held during the year. For details of meetings of the Board,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an
annual evaluation of its own performance and of the individual Directors as well as an evaluation of the
working of all the Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors was assisted by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”). The performance evaluation was carried out by seeking inputs
from all the Directors/Members of the Committees, as the case may be.

The Board of the Company followed the criteria as specified in the Guidance Note on the Board
Evaluation issued by SEBI for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, Committees of the
Board, Individual Directors and the Chairman. The criteria for evaluation of the Board as a whole, inter
alia, covered parameters such as Structure of the Board, Meetings of the Board, Functions of the Board
and Board & Management. The criteria for evaluation of Individual Directors covered parameters such
as knowledge and competency, fulfillment of functions, ability to function as a team, etc. The criteria for
evaluation of the Board Committees covered areas related to mandate and composition, effectiveness
of the committee, structure of the committee and meetings, etc.

The feedback of the Independent Directors on their review of the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and the Board as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and the
assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company, the
Management and the Board was taken into consideration by the Board in carrying out the performance
evaluation.

POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The NRC develops the competency requirements of the Board based on the industry and the strategy
of the Company, conducts a gap analysis and recommends the reconstitution of the Board, as and
when required. It also recommends to the Board, the appointment of Directors having good personal
and professional reputation and conducts reference checks and due diligence of all Directors before
recommending them to the Board. Besides the above, the NRC ensures that the new Directors are
familiarized with the operations of the Company and endeavors to provide relevant training to the
Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors have adopted a
Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes and a Remuneration Policy.

The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes has been framed to encourage diversity of thought,
experience, knowledge, perspective, age and gender in the Board and to have in place, a transparent
Board nomination process.

The Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“‘KMP”) and all other employees is
aligned to the philosophy on the commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust.

The Remuneration Policy aims to ensure that the level and composition of the remuneration of the

Directors, KMP and all other employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them
to successfully run the Company.
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Salient features of the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, includes:

° Remuneration in the form of Sitting Fees and Commission to be paid to Independent Directors
and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors, in accordance with the provisions of the Act and
as recommended by the NRC;

° Remuneration to Managing Director / Executive Directors / KMP and all other employees is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to run the Company successfully
and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for their roles, in accordance with the defined
terms of remuneration mix or composition; and

° No remuneration would be payable to Directors for services rendered in any other capacity
unless the services are of a professional nature and the NRC is of the opinion that the Director
possesses requisite qualification for the practice of the profession and approval of the Central
Government has been received, if required, for paying the same.

The Company has also adopted a ‘Fit and Proper’ Policy for ascertaining the ‘fit and proper’ criteria
to be adopted at the time of appointment of directors and on a continuing basis, pursuant to the RBI
Directions for CICs. The Company has received the ‘Fit and Proper’ declarations from all the Directors
of the Company in April 2023, which have been taken on record by the NRC.

The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes, Fit and Proper policy as also the Remuneration
Policy of the Company are made available on the Company’s website, www.tatacapital.com.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, Managing Director & CEO, Mr. Rakesh Bhatia, Chief Financial Officer and
Ms. Sarita Kamath, Head — Legal and Compliance & Company Secretary, are the KMPs of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained
by the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed
by the Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board
is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during
FY 2022-23.

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge
and ability, confirm that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for FY2022-23, Indian Accounting Standards
as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified under Section 133 of the Act, other relevant
provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by Regulators as applicable to an NBFC and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India have been followed and that there are no
material departures therefrom;

b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profits and cash flows of the
Company for the year;
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c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls were adequate and operating effectively; and

f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, as notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Act.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for reporting of concerns or grievances. The said
mechanism, inter alia, encompasses the Whistle Blower Policy, the Fraud Risk Management Process,
the mechanism for reporting of ethical concerns under the TCOC and the ABAC Policy and it provides
for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use it.

The Vigil Mechanism provides access to Tata Capital’s Ethics Committee for reporting concerns and
grievances. It also provides access to the Compliance Officer under the Company’s ABAC Policy and
to the Chairperson of the Company’s Audit Committee / the Chief Ethics Counsellor under the Company’s
Whistle Blower Policy. Information regarding the mechanism and the channels for reporting concerns
are communicated to the relevant stakeholders. The Whistle Blower Policy, Vigil Mechanism, TCOC
and the ABAC Policy documents are available on the website of the Company, www.tatacapital.com.

DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to providing and promoting a safe and healthy work environment for all its
employees. A ‘Prevention of Sexual Harassment’ Policy, which is in line with the statutory requirements,
along with a structured reporting and redressal mechanism, including the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee in accordance with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“the POSH Act”), is in place.

During FY 2022-23, no complaints were received under the provisions of the POSH Act.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The details pertaining to the composition of the Audit Committee are included in the Corporate
Governance Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the 31t AGM of the Company held on June 28, 2022, the Members approved the appointment of
M/s. KKC & Associates LLP (formerly known as M/s Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP), Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Firm Registration No. 105146W/W100621), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for further period
of two years i.e. for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24.
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, the Company follows the Directions issued by RBI for CICs.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention
except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period as explained in the Accounting Policies. The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of
the Financial Statements have been consistently followed in the previous year.

EXPLANATION ON STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. KKC & Associates
LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, in their Reports dated April 27, 2023 on the Financial
Statements of the Company for FY 2022-23.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Parikh & Associates,
a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company, for
FY 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report, in the prescribed Form No. MR-3, is annexed as Annexure ‘B’.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by M/s. Parikh & Associates in
their Secretarial Audit Report dated May 22, 2023 on the secretarial and other related records of the
Company, for FY 2022-23.

INFORMATION ON MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between March 31, 2023 and May 22, 2023, being the date of this Report.

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The Board of Directors of TCL at its meeting held on March 28, 2023, approved a Scheme of Arrangement
for amalgamation of TCFSL, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and TCCL, a subsidiary of the
Company with TCL and their respective shareholders (“the Scheme”), under Sections 230 to 232 read
with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the Rules
made thereunder.

The Scheme will become effective from the Appointed Date i.e. April 1, 2023 or such other later date
as may be decided by the Board of Directors, and operative from Effective Date which is conditional
upon fulfilment of all the conditions set out in the Scheme including approval of the Scheme by the
National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’), grant of NBFC license in the name of TCL by Reserve Bank
of India and upon the receipt of other applicable regulatory approvals.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective:

i. The entire business of TCFSL and TCCL shall be merged with and vested in TCL and thereafter
TCL will carry on all the business activities undertaken by TCFSL and TCCL.

ii. From the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, the business carried on by TCCL and TCFSL
shall be deemed to have been carried on for and on behalf of and in trust for TCL.
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iii. All the shares of TCFSL and TCCL held by TCL (either directly and/or through nominees) would
stand cancelled without any further application, act or deed. Further, Equity Shares of TCL would
be issued to other member(s) of TCCL as per the share exchange ratio determined based on the
Valuation Reports and the Fairness Opinions.

iv. The holders of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of TCFSL and TCCL will become holders of
NCDs of TCL on the same terms, including the coupon rate, tenure, redemption price, quantum,
nature of security, adequately safeguarding the interest of the NCD holders.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS

During the period under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by any regulator or
court or tribunal impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As required under Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated
a ‘Policy on Related Party Transactions’ for proper conduct and documentation of all related party
transactions. The same is available on the website of the Company at www.tatacapital.com. Further, the
Company also has in place a Framework on Related Party Transactions for the purpose of identification,
monitoring and approving of such transactions as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Details of Related Party Transactions, as required to be disclosed by Indian Accounting Standard - 24
on “Related Party Disclosures” specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Further, there
were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form
AOC-2 does not form a part of this report.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any transaction with Related Parties which is not in
its ordinary course of business or not on an arm’s length basis.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
& OUTGO

(A) Conservation of energy:
i Steps taken/impact on conservation of energy:

The operations of the Company, being financial services related, require normal consumption
of electricity. The Company is taking every necessary step to reduce its consumption of
energy.

At Tata Capital regular Electrical audits as part of Energy Conservation activity are conducted
and suggested measures are implemented to achieve and improve energy efficiency.

Several Office premises of Tata Capital have been retrofitted with LED lights to conserve
electricity, as LED lights consume less electricity as compared to the conventional CFL
bulbs. Air Conditioners’ temperature across all Tata Capital Offices are maintained at the
optimum ambient temperature (24-25 degree celsius) resulting into savings of energy and
also at some premises outgoing air conditioner duct design has been modified to provide
better energy efficiencies.
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ii. Steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy:

Tata Capital has installed a solar panel at its Thane office which produces close to 750
Watts of energy and which self illuminates and provides power to the garden and security
lights on the campus from dusk to dawn. This facility has been handed over to the Lodha
Facility team for the day to day operations.

iii. Capital investment on energy conservation equipment:

In view of the nature of the activities carried on by the Company, there is no capital
investment on energy conservation equipment.

(B) Technology absorption:

Being a Core Investment Company and not being involved in any industrial or manufacturing
activities, the Company has no particulars to report regarding technology absorption.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year under review was
% 35.80 crore and the Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year under review in terms of actual
outflows was ¥ 0.10 crore.

ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2023
is available on the website of the Company at www.tatacapital.com under Investor Information tab.

TATA CAPITAL LIMITED EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE / OPTION SCHEME

In order to develop and implement a long-term incentive program to effectively attract, motivate and
retain the best talent from the industry in a competitive environment, the Company has implemented the
Tata Capital Limited Employee Stock Purchase/Option Scheme (“Scheme”), which has been amended
from time to time. For implementation of the Scheme, the TCL Employee Welfare Trust (“Trust”) was
set up.

The Trust has entrusted the NRC of the Board, with powers to effectively administer the Scheme.
In accordance with the Scheme the NRC, inter alia, determines the employees to whom an offer is to
be made based on certain performance criteria, the price at which the options can be exercised, the
quantum of offer to be made and the terms and conditions for vesting and exercise of the offer.

As at March 31, 2023, out of 7,08,97,614 Equity Shares of the Company allotted to the Trust, 1,78,58,607
Equity Shares of the Company aggregating 0.50% of its total paid up Equity Share Capital were held
by the persons to whom ESOPs were granted and were exercised by them under the ESOP scheme.
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The following disclosures, pertaining to ESOPs for the FY 2022-23, are being made as required under

Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014:

Sr. No. | Particulars
(i) Options Granted 51,02,730
(ii) Options Vested 58,38,500
(iii) Options Exercised 4.,18,000
(iv) Total number of shares arising out of exercise of Options 4,18,000
(v) Options Lapsed 2,71,829
(vi) Exercise Price 347.34
(vii) Money realized by exercise of Options 31,97,87,400
(viii) Variation of terms of Options -
(ix) Total number of Options in force as at March 31, 2023 3,01,94,573
(Total No. of Options granted so far Less Total No. of Options exercised
and lapsed / forfeited)

Employee-wise details of options granted, during FY 2022-23, to (Options yet to be exercised):

a. Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr. |Name of Key Managerial Personnel
No.

No. of Options granted

(i) Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal 9,90,100
(i) | Mr. Rakesh Bhatia 1,65,820
(iii) | Ms. Sarita Kamath 82,910

b. Any other employee who received a grant of Options in any one year of Options amounting

to five percent or more of Options granted during that year:

Name of Eligible Employees

No. of Options granted

Mr. Anil Kaul* 3,31,640
Mr. Sarosh Amaria* 3,31,640
*Employees of the Subsidiary Companies

c. Identified employees who were granted Options, during any one year, equal to or exceeding

one percent of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of

the Company at the time of grant: None.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A detailed analysis of the Company’s performance is discussed in the Management Discussion and

Analysis Report, which forms part of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate Governance Report, with the Practicing Company Secretaries’ Certificate thereon, for the
year under review prepared in accordance with the Part C of Schedule V of SEBI Listing Regulations
and as required under the Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions,

2016, forms part of this Annual Report.
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is in compliance with SS - 1 i.e. Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of
Directors and SS - 2 i.e. Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

GREEN INITIATIVE

Section 136 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder allows the Company to send its Financial
Statements by electronic mode to such Members whose shareholding is in dematerialized format and
whose email addresses are registered with the Depositories for communication purposes. Shareholders
who have not registered their email address with the Depositories are requested to register the same.
Further, in accordance with the Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read with Circular No.10/2022
dated December 28, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Notice of the AGM including
the Annual Report of the Company is being sent only through electronic mode to all the Members whose
e-mail addresses are registered with the Depositories.

A copy of this Annual Report is also available on the website of the Company, www.tatacapital.com.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Saurabh Agrawal
Chairman
DIN: 02144558

Mumbai
May 22, 2023
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Annexure A
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”) ACTIVITIES
Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
Vision: To create shared value for the community at large in line with the Tata Group’s core purpose.
Purpose: We endeavour to improve the lives of the community, especially the socially and economically

underprivileged communities, by making a long term, measurable and positive impact through projects
in the areas of:

. Education

. Climate Action

. Health

. Skill Development

Sectors and Issues: In sectors and issues pertaining to the purpose mentioned above.

For details of the CSR Policy along with projects and programs, kindly refer to
https://www.tatacapital.com/content/dam/tata-capital/pdf/footer/TCL-CSR%Z20Policy.pdf

Composition of CSR Commiittee:

Sl Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of Number of

No. Directorship meetings of CSR meetings of
Committee held | CSR Committee
during the year | attended during

the year
1. Mr. Saurabh Agrawal, Non-Executive Director 2 2
Chairman

2. |Mr. F. N. Subedar Non-Executive Director 2 2

3. |Ms. Malvika Sinha Independent Director 2 2

4. |Ms. Aarthi Subramanian Non-Executive Director 2 2

5. | Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal Managing Director & CEO 2 2

Provide the web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Composition of CSR Committee:
https://www.tatacapital.com/content/dam/tata-capital/pdf/footer/TCL _Committees%27 %20Composition.pdf

CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board: 4
https://www.tatacapital.com/content/dam/tata-capital/pdf/footer/TCL-CSR%20Policy.pdf

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.

Not Applicable
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
(e)

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

(f)

Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.

Financial Year Net Profit (net of dividend)
FY 2019-20 47,23,98,200
FY 2020-21 (22,10,43,610)
FY 2021-22 (21,28,65,471)
Average Net Profit 1,28,29,706

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.:
T 2,56,594/- rounded off to ¥ 2,57,000/-

Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.: NIL

Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL

Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)] : ¥ 2,57,000/-

Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
¥ 2,57,000/-

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: ¥ 2,57,000/-

CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in %)

Spent for the | Total Amount transferred | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year | to Unspent CSR Account |under Schedule VIl as per second proviso
(ing) as per sub-section (6) of to sub-section (5) of section 135.

section 135.
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer
2,57,000 NA NA NA NA NA

Excess amount for set-off, if any:

SlI. No. Particular Amount (in %)

(1) 2) 3)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section 2,57,000
(5) of section 135

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 2,57,000

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] NA

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities NA
of the previous Financial Years, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] NA
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Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial
Years: NA

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. | Preceding Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred Amount | Deficiency,
No. | Financial | transferred | Amount in Spent to a Fund as remaining if any

Year(s) |toUnspent| Unspent in the specified under to be
CSR CSR Financial | Schedule VIl as per spent in
Account Account Year (in second proviso to |succeeding
under sub- | under sub- Rs) sub- section (5) of Financial
section (6) | section (6) section 135, if any Years (in
of section | of section Rs)
135 (inX) | 135(in%) Amount | Date of
(in%) Transfer
1 FY-1
2 FY-2
3 FY-3

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

O Yes O No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired.

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility
amount spent in the Financial Year:

SI. Short Pincode | Date of | Amount| Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary
No. particulars of of the |creation| of CSR of the registered owner
the property | property amount
or asset(s) or spent
[including assef(s)
complete

address and
location of the

property]
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
CSR Name Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal Office/Municipal
Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)
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9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per sub- section (5) of section 135.: NA

Saurabh Agrawal F. N. Subedar
Chairman, CSR Committee Member, CSR Committee
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
DIN : 02144558 DIN: 00028428

Malvika Sinha Aarthi Subramanian
Member, CSR Committee Member, CSR Committee
Independent Director Non-Executive Director
DIN: 08373142 DIN: 07121802

Rajiv Sabharwal
Member, CSR Committee
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 00057333
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Annexure B

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
Tata Capital Limited

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Tata Capital Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company, to the extent the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, the explanations and clarifications
given to us and the representations made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread
of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 generally complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made
available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 according to
the provisions of:

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder; (as may be
applicable to the Company)

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (as may be applicable
to the Company)

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (as
may be applicable to the Company)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”), as amended from time to time:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity)
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)
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(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client (Not applicable to
the Company during the audit period);

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit period).

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company are:

(a) All the Rules, Regulations, Directions, Guidelines and Circulars including Master Direction - Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”), issued by the Reserve Bank
of India, as amended from time to time.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations, 2012,
as amended from time to time.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to Board and
General Meetings.

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited with
respect to Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company on a private placement basis read with the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors as on March 31, 2023. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act.

We report that as regards the compliance of Regulation 15 to 27 of SEBI LODR, 2015 on a comply or explain
basis until March 31, 2023, the Company has been providing the necessary explanation in the quarterly
compliance report on Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of
SEBI LODR, 2015.

Adequate notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed notes on
Agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for Meetings other than those held at shorter notice, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes, the decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.
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We further report that during the audit period the Company had following events which had bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

i The Company has offered, issued and allotted 4,39,52,097 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each on March 23, 2023,
at a premium of ¥ 125.10 per Equity Share, aggregating ¥ 593.80 crore, on a ‘Rights Basis’ to the Equity
Shareholders

i.  The Company has redeemed 8250 Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures for an aggregate
amount of ¥ 825 crore, issued on a private placement basis.

iii. Consequentto the Put Option exercised by the Company, the Company had redeemed 401950 Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 1000 each, aggregating to ¥ 40.19 crore, issued on Private Placement
basis.

iv. The Company has issued 53000 units of Commercial Papers (“CP”) for an aggregate amount of ¥ 2650
crore (Face Value).

v.  The Company has redeemed 29000 units of CP for an aggregate amount of ¥ 1450 crore (Face value).

vi. The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase / Option Scheme (“‘ESOP Scheme”) which is implemented
through the TCL Employee Welfare Trust (“Trust”) to whom the Company had allotted Equity Shares
in the past. During the year, the Trust has transferred 4,31,400 Equity Shares to the employees of the
Company and its subsidiary companies and has bought back 9,321 Equity Shares in terms of the ESOP
Scheme.

vii. The Board of Directors of Tata Capital Limited (“‘the Company” or “TCL”) at its meeting held on
March 28, 2023, approved a Scheme of Arrangement for amalgamation of Tata Capital Financial Services
Limited (“TCFSL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Tata Cleantech Capital Limited
(“TCCL"), a subsidiary of the Company with TCL and their respective shareholders (“the Scheme”), under
Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) and the Rules made thereunder.

The Scheme will become effective from the Appointed Date i.e. April 1, 2023 or such other later date as may
be decided by the Board of Directors, and operative from Effective Date which is conditional upon fulfilment
of all the conditions set out in the Scheme including approval of the Scheme by the National Company Law
Tribunal (‘NCLT’), grant of NBFC license in the name of TCL by Reserve Bank of India and upon the receipt
of other applicable regulatory approvals.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jigyasa N. Ved
Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: 22.05.2023 FCS No: 6488 CP No: 6018
UDIN: FO06488E000346179
PR No.: 1129/2021

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure | and forms an integral
part of this Report.
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‘Annexure I’

To,
The Members
Tata Capital Limited

Our Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices,
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jigyasa N. Ved

Place: Mumbai Partner
Date: 22.05.2023 FCS No: 6488 CP No: 6018
UDIN: FO06488E000346179

PR No.: 1129/2021
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Corporate Governance Report

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance

The Company recognises its role as a corporate citizen and endeavours to adopt the best practices and
the highest standards of corporate governance through transparency in business ethics, accountability
to its customers, investors, regulators and other stakeholders. The Company’s activities are carried
out in accordance with good corporate practices and the Company is constantly striving to better these
standards by adopting best practices.

The Company believes that governance practices enable the Management to direct and control the affairs
of the Company in an efficient manner and to achieve the Company’s goal of maximising value for all its
stakeholders. The Company will continue to focus its resources, strengths and strategies to achieve its
vision, while upholding the core values of transparency, integrity, honesty and accountability, which are
fundamental to Tata companies.

As a part of the Tata Group, Tata Capital has a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical governance
practices. The Corporate Governance philosophy is further strengthened by adherence to the
Tata Business Excellence Model (“TBEM”) as a means to drive excellence; the Key Performance Metrics
for tracking progress on long-term strategic objectives; and following the Tata Code of Conduct (“TCOC”),
which articulates the values, ethics and business principles and serves as a guide to the Company,
its Directors and employees, supplemented with an appropriate mechanism to report any concern
pertaining to non-adherence to the TCOC. In addition, the Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism, an
Affirmative Action Policy, a Policy against Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, a Fit and Proper Policy
for ascertaining the fit and proper criteria for the Directors at the time of appointment and on a continuing
basis, a Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes, a Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors,
an Occupational Health and Safety Management System, Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption (“ABAC”)
Policy and a Whistle blower policy.

The Company has signed the Tata Brand Equity and Business Promotion (“BEBP”) Agreement with
Tata Sons Private Limited for subscribing to the TATA BEBP Scheme.

Board of Directors

a) As on March 31, 2023, the Company had 8 (Eight) Directors. Out of the 8 (Eight), 4 (Four) are
Independent, Non-Executive Directors; 3 (three) are Non-Independent, Non-Executive and 1
(one) is an Executive Director. The profiles of Directors can be found on the Company’s website
www.tatacapital.com.

b)  None of the Directors on the Board holds Directorship in more than 7 (seven) equity listed companies.
Further, none of the Independent Directors (IDs) of the Company serves as an ID in more than
7 (seven) equity listed companies. None of the IDs serves as a whole-time director / managing
director in any listed entity. None of the Directors holds directorship in more than 20 (twenty)
Indian companies, with not more than 10 (ten) public limited companies. None of the Directors is
a member of more than 10 committees or acts as chairperson of more than 5 committees (being
Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, as per Regulation 26(1) of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) across all the
public limited companies in which he/she is a Director. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee
positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2023 have been made by the Directors. None
of the Directors are related to each other.

c) Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) along with rules
framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated
that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received
from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of
independence as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they
are independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors have included their names
in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs
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in terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014.

d) 11 (Eleven) Board Meetings were held during the year under review and the gap between
two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were held on:
April 03, 2022, April 26, 2022, May 13, 2022, July 27, 2022, October 28, 2022, December 16, 2022,
January 24, 2023, February 07, 2023, February 24, 2023, March 16, 2023 and March 28, 2023.
The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

e) The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings
held during the year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), name of other
listed entities in which the Director is a director and the number of Directorships and Committee
Chairpersonships / Memberships held by them in other public limited companies as on March 31,
2023 and list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors are given
herein below:

Name of the Category |Skills / Expertise| Number | Whether [Number of Directorships| Number of Committee | Directorship in other
Director | Competencies | of Board | attended in other Companies positions held in other listed entity
(DIN) Meetings | last AGM Public Companies** (Category of
attended | heldon |chimperson| Member |Chairperson| Member Directorship)
during FY | June 28,
2022-2023 2022
Mr. Saurabh Non- Leadership, " No 4 7 - 2 1. Tata Steel Limited@
Agrawal Independent, | Strategy, (Public) (Public) 2. The Tata Power
(Chairman) Non- Finance, Company Limited®
(02144558) Executive Governance, 2 5 3. Voltas Limited@
Regulatory (Other) (Other) 4. Tata AIG General
Affairs, Capital Insurance Company
Director Since: Markets and Limited (Debt Listed)@
July 28, 2017 Merger & 5. Tata Power
Acquisitions Renewable Energy
Limited (Debt Listed)@
Mr. F.N. Subedar | Non- Leadership, 10 Yes 1 4 2 4 1. Tata Investment
(00028428) Independent, | Strategy, (Public) (Public) Corporation Limited@
Non- Company 2. DCB Bank Limited*
Executive Administration, 3. Tata Capital Financial
Director Since: Finance, Services Limited (Debt
March 11, 1997 Taxation, listed) @
Accounts,
Operation,
Governance,
Regulatory
Affairs
Ms. Varsha Independent | Leadership, 1 Yes 1 9 4 8 1. Deepak Fertilisers
Purandare Strategy, (Public) (Public) and Petrochemicals
(05288076) Credit, Forex, Corporation Limited*
Risk, Treasury, 2. Orient Cement
Director Since: Capital Markets, Limited*
April 1, 2019 Investment 3. The Federal Bank
Banking, Limited*
Private Equity, 4. Tata Capital Financial
Governance, Services Limited (Debt
Regulatory Listed) #
Affairs 5. Tata Cleantech Capital
Limited (Debt Listed) #
6. Tata Motors Finance
Limited (Debt Listed) #
7. Tata Motors Finance
Solutions Limited
(Debt Listed) #
8. TMF Holdings Limited
(Debt Listed) *#

56



W

TATA

Name of the Category |Skills / Expertise| Number | Whether |[Number of Directorships| Number of Committee | Directorship in other
Director | Competencies | of Board | attended in other Companies positions held in other listed entity
(DIN) Meetings | last AGM Public Companies** (Category of
attended | heldon |chajmerson| Member |Chairperson| Member Directorship)
during FY | June 28,
2022-2023 2022
Ms. Malvika Independent | Leadership, 1 Yes - 6 - 7 1. Mahanagar Gas
Sinha Strategy, (Public) Limited*
(08373142) Finance, 2. Mahindra Logistics
Accounts, Limited*
Director Since: Forex, Human 3. Tata Capital Financial
April 1, 2021 Resources, Services Limited (Debt
Banking Listed)*
Operations, 4. Tata Capital Housing
Governance, Finance Limited (Debt
Regulatory Listed)*
Affairs
Mr. V. S. Independent | Leadership, - - - - - - -
Radhakrishnan® | (Additional) Strategy,
(08064705) Project Finance,
Governance,
Director Since: Regulatory
March 30, 2023 Affairs, Banking
operations,
Credit, Treasury
and commercial
lending
Mr. Mathew Independent | Leadership, - - 1 5 3 8 1. Gokaldas Exports
Cyriac® (Additional) Strategy, (Public) (Public) Limited®
(01903606) Finance, 2. Jyoti Structures
Capital Markets, 12 Limited®
Director Since: Investment (Others) 3. Data Patterns (India)
March 30, 2023 Banking, Limited"
Private Equity
and Merger &
Acquisitions
Ms. Aarthi Non- Leadership, 10 Yes 2 7 - 3 1. Tata Consultancy
Subramanian Independent, | Strategy, Digital, (Public) (Public) Services Limited®
(07121802) Non- Operation,
Executive Governance, 3
Director Since: Regulatory (Others)
QOctober 30, 2017 Affairs
Mr. Rajiv Non- Leadership, 1 Yes 3 4 1 3 1. Tata Cleantech Capital
Sabharwal Independent, | Strategy, (Public) (Public) Limited (Debt Listed) @
(Managing Executive Finance, Risk, 2. Tata Capital Financial
Director & CEO) Treasury, Credit, 1 3 Services Limited (Debt
(00057333) Private Equity, (Others) (Others) Listed) @
Governance, 3. Tata Capital Housing
Director Since: Regulatory Finance Limited (Debt
April 1, 2018 Affairs, Listed) @
Retail Banking,
Banking
Operations

@ Non-Independent, Non-Executive

# Independent, Non-Executive

*Nominee, Non-Executive

** Pertains to memberships/chairpersonships of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Indian
public companies (excluding the Company) as per Regulation 26(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

$ Mr. V. S. Radhakrishnan and Mr. Mathew Cyriac were appointed as Additional Directors and Independent Directors of
the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from March 30, 2023, subject to approval of the shareholders

of the Company.

f)  Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year:
Sr. | Name of the Director Capacity Nature of Change | Effective Date
No.
1. | Ms. Malvika Sinha Independent Director Appointment April 1, 2021
2. | Mr. Vadalur Subramanian Additional Appointment March 30, 2023
Radhakrishnan (Independent Director)
3. | Mr. Mathew Cyriac Additional Appointment March 30, 2023

(Independent Director)

57



TATA CAPITAL
Count on us Annual Report 2022-23

g) The Board believes that the skills / competencies / expertise, as mentioned in the above table are
required for the business of the Company and the Directors of the Company possess these skills /
competencies / expertise for it to function effectively.

h) During FY 2022-23, 1 (one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on March 27, 2023,
wherein all the Independent Directors attended the meeting. The Independent Directors, inter-alia,
reviewed the performance of the Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole and the Chairman
of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Director and Non-Executive Directors.

i)  The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. During
FY 2022-2023, information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule Il of the SEBI Listing Regulations,
has been placed before the Board for its consideration.

i) None of the Directors are related inter-se.

k) Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on March 31, 2023 are given

below:
# |Name of the Director Category No. of Equity Shares
1 |Mr. Farokh N Subedar Non-Executive Director 2,46,783

The Company has not issued any convertible instruments.
3. Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific areas. These
include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management
Committee, the Finance and Asset Liability Supervisory Committee*, the Information Technology Strategy
Committee, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of all the aforementioned Committees. The Board of Directors
and the Committees also take decisions by circular resolutions which are noted by the Board/respective
Committees of the Board at their next meetings. The Minutes and the gist of minutes of meetings of all
Committees of the Board are circulated to the Board of Directors for noting.

*The Board level Finance and Asset Liability Supervisory Committee was dissolved and a Management level Asset
Liability Management Committee has been constituted with effect from January 24, 2023.

i Audit Committee

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During FY 2022-23, 8 (Eight) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on the following
dates: April 25, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 13, 2022, October 27, 2022, December 16, 2022,
January 23, 2023, March 20, 2023 and March 28, 2023.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on date of this Report and the attendance details of
meetings during FY 2022-23 is, given below:

Name of the Member(s) | Category Member of No. of Meetings
Committee since Held |Attended
Ms. Varsha Purandare Chairperson and October 24, 2020 8 8
Independent Director
Ms. Malvika Sinha Independent Director April 1, 2021 8 8
Mr. Farokh N. Subedar Non-Executive Director | November 27, 2007 8 8

The composition of the Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act and
the Regulation 18 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. All the Members have the ability to read and
understand financial statements and have relevant finance and / or audit experience.
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The previous AGM of the Company was held on June 28, 2022 and was attended by
Ms. Varsha Purandare, Chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Terms of reference

The Board has adopted an Audit Committee Charter which defines the composition of the Audit
Committee, its authority, role, responsibilities and powers and reporting functions in accordance with
the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Charter is reviewed from time to time and is available on
the website of the Company, www.tatacapital.com

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee, inter alia, include:

- Review of the financial reporting process, the system of internal financial controls, the audit
process, the Company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the
Code of Conduct;

- To recommend the appointment and removal of the Auditors and their remuneration and discuss
with the Auditors the nature and scope of their audit before commencement;

- To examine the financial statements, financial results and the Auditors’ Report thereon;
- To evaluate the financial and risk management systems;
- To review the adequacy and performance of Risk Based Internal Audit function;

- To perform activities and carry out functions as laid down in the Framework for Related Party
Transactions adopted by the Board;

- To review findings of internal investigations, frauds, irregularities, etc.; and
- To review the functioning of and compliance with the Company’s Whistle Blower Policy
The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year.

Besides the Members of the Committee, meetings of the Audit Committee are attended by the Managing
Director & CEO, the Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary, the Statutory Auditors and the Chief
Internal Auditor. The Internal Audit function is headed by the Chief Internal Auditor of the Company who
reports to the Audit Committee to ensure independence of operations.

ii. Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”)

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During FY 2022-23, 3 (Three) meetings of the NRC were held on the following dates: May 13, 2022,
January 24, 2023 and March 16, 2023.

The composition of the NRC as on date of this Report and the attendance details of meetings during
FY 2022-23 is, given below:

Name of the Member(s) | Category Member of No. of Meetings
Committee since Held |Attended
Ms. Varsha Purandare Chairperson and October 24, 2020 3 3
Independent Director
Ms. Malvika Sinha Independent Director April 1, 2021 3 3
Mr. Saurabh Agrawal Non-Executive Director July 28, 2017 3 3

The composition of the NRC is in line with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations.

The previous AGM of the Company was held on June 28, 2022 and was attended by
Ms. Varsha Purandare, Chairperson of the NRC.
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Terms of reference
The responsibilities of the NRC, inter alia, include:

- To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, fit & proper status, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board, a policy with necessary provisions
as required under the applicable laws relating to the remuneration for the directors, KMPs, the
Executive team and other employees;

- To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board
of Directors;

- To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;

- To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board, their
appointment and removal;

- To decide whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director,
on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors;

- To recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior Management;
and

- To decide commission payable to the Directors, subject to prescribed limits and approval of
shareholders.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is based on various factors which
includes participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge
and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior and
judgment.

Risk Management Committee (“RMC”)

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During FY 2022-23, 2 (Two) meetings of the RMC were held on the following dates:
August 08, 2022 and February 01, 2023.

The composition of the RMC as on date of this Report and the attendance details of meetings during
FY 2022-23 is, given below:

Name of the Member(s) | Category Member of No. of Meetings
Committee since Held |Attended
Mr. Saurabh Agrawal Chairman and July 28, 2017 2 2
Non-Executive Director
Ms. Varsha Purandare Independent Director April 1, 2019 2 2
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal Managing Director & CEO April 1, 2018 2 2

The composition of the RMC is in line with the provisions of Regulation 21 of SEBI Listing Regulations.
Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the RMC, inter alia, include:

- To assist the Board in its oversight of various risks;

- To review and analyse risk exposure related to specific issues and provide oversight of risk
across the Company;

- To review risk profile of the subsidiaries;
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- To formulate a detailed Risk Management Policy and oversee the implementation of the same,
including evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;

- To ensure whether appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to monitor
and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company; and

- To review the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer.
Finance and Asset Liability Supervisory Committee (“ALCO”)

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During FY 2022-23, 1 (One) meeting of the ALCO was held on August 08, 2022

The composition of the ALCO and details of attendance at the Board level ALCO meeting held
during FY 2022-23 is, given below:

Name of the Member(s) | Category Member of No. of Meetings
Committee since Held |Attended

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal Chairman and July 28, 2017 1 1
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Farokh N. Subedar Non-Executive Director | November 27, 2007 1 1

Ms. Varsha Purandare Independent Director April 01, 2019 1 1

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal Managing Director & April 01, 2018 1 1
CEO

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the ALCO, inter alia, include to oversee:

- Asset Liability Management;

- Debt composition and plan of the Company for fund raising; and
- Resource raising policy of the Company.

Note:

The Board level ALCO was dissolved and a Management level ALCO has been constituted with
effect from January 24, 2023.

Information Technology Strategy Committee (“ITSC”)

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During FY 2022-23, 2 (Two) meetings of the ITSC were held on the following dates: August 05, 2022
and February 03, 2023.

The composition of the ITSC as on date of this Report and details of attendance at the ITSC meetings
held during FY 2022-23 is, given below

Name of the Member(s) | Category Member of No. of Meetings
Committee since Held |Attended

Ms. Malvika Sinha Chairperson and April 01, 2021 2 2
Independent Director

Ms. Varsha Purandare Independent Director April 01, 2019 2 1

Ms. Aarthi Subramanian | Non-Executive Director May 07, 2018 2 2

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal Managing Director & May 07, 2018 2 2
CEO

Mr. Bhavin Purohit Chief Technology Officer April 01, 2021 2 2
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Vi.

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the ITSC, inter alia, include:

To approve the IT strategy and policy documents;

To institute an effective governance mechanism and risk management process for all outsourced
IT operations and to do all such acts as may be required under the IT Directions in respect of
the outsourced IT operations; and

To recommend the appointment of IT / IS Auditor and review the IT / Information Systems Audit
report and provide its observation / recommendations to the Board.

Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Committee

Composition, Meetings and Attendance

During FY 2022-23, 2 (Two) meetings of the CSR were held on the following dates: May 09, 2022
and March 28, 2023.

The composition of the CSR Committee as on date of this Report and details of attendance at the
CSR meetings held during FY 2022-23 is, given below

Name of the Member(s) | Category Member of No. of Meetings
Committee since Held |Attended

Mr. Saurabh Agrawal Chairman and August 1, 2019 2 2
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Farokh N. Subedar Non-Executive Director March 7, 2014 2 2

Ms. Malvika Sinha Independent Director April 1, 2021 2 2

Ms. Aarthi Subramanian | Non-Executive Director | October 30, 2017 2 2

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal Managing Director & April 1, 2018 2 2
CEO

Terms of reference

The responsibilities of the CSR Committee, inter alia, include:

To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall include the guiding
principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of activities to be undertaken by the
Company as specified in Schedule VIl of the Act (“CSR Activities”) as well as for formulation
of the annual action plan by the Company;

To formulate and recommend to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the
CSR Policy and in accordance with the applicable Rules. Recommend alteration in such
Plan to the Board of Directors, at any time during the financial year, based on the reasonable
justification to that effect;

To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities;

To monitor the CSR Policy of the Company and expenditure of the subsidiaries from time to
time and instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects
or programs or activities undertaken by the Company;

To oversee the Company’s conduct with regard to its corporate and societal obligations and
its reputation as a responsible corporate citizen; and

To oversee activities impacting the quality of life of the beneficiaries of the CSR projects.
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vii. Stakeholders Relationship Committee (“SRC”)
Composition, Meetings and Attendance
During FY 2022-23, 1 (one) meeting of the SRC was held on February 08, 2023.

The composition of the SRC as on date of this Report and details of attendance at the SRC meeting
held during FY 2022-23 is, given below:

Name of the Member(s) | Category Member of No. of Meetings
Committee since| Held |Attended
Ms. Aarthi Subramanian | Chairperson and October 30, 2017 1 1
Non-Executive Director
Ms. Malvika Sinha Independent Director April 1, 2021 1 1
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal Managing Director & CEO April 1, 2018 1 1

The responsibilities of the SRC, inter alia, is to consider and resolve the grievances/complaints of
security holders of the Company.

The previous AGM of the Company was held on June 28, 2022 and was attended by
Ms. Aarthi Subramanian, Chairperson of the SRC.

a) Name, designation and address of the Compliance Officer:

Ms. Sarita Kamath, Head - Legal and Compliance & Company Secretary
11" Floor, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,

Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai 400013

Telephone No.: 022 6606 9000

Email ID: investors@tatacapital.com

b) Details of Complaints received from the Debenture holders (only Non-Convertible Debentures
issued on Private Placement basis are listed on NSE) and redressed during the FY 2022-23
are as follows:

Opening Balance Received during Resolved during Closing Balance
the year the year
Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) During FY 2022-23, no complaints were received from the Equity Shareholders of the Company.
Remuneration of Directors

The Company paid sitting fees to the Non-Executive Directors (“NEDs”) and Independent Directors
(“IDs”) for attending meetings of the Board and the Committees of the Board and will pay Commission
for the FY 2022-23, within the maximum prescribed limits to the NEDs and IDs who were Directors of
the Company during FY 2022-23, as recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board at their
respective meetings held on May 22, 2023. The details of the same are, as under:

a. Non-Executive Directors:

Name Sitting Fees paid for attending| Commission to be
Board and Committee Meetings | paid for FY 2022-23
held during FY 2022-23

*Mr. Saurabh Agrawal, ¥ 3,80,000 Nil
Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr. Farokh N. Subedar, % 9,30,000 ¥ 30,00,000
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Varsha Purandare, $12,70,000 ¥ 30,00,000

Independent director
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Name Sitting Fees paid for attending| Commission to be
Board and Committee Meetings | paid for FY 2022-23

held during FY 2022-23
Ms. Malvika Sinha, ¥ 13,00,000 ¥ 30,00,000
Independent Director
@Mr. V S Radhakrishnan - -
@Mr. Mathew Cyriac -
*Ms. Aarthi Subramanian, ¥ 6,50,000 Nil
Non-Executive Director

* In line with the internal guidelines of the Company, no payment is made towards commission to the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company, who are in full time employment with any other Tata company.

@ No Sitting Fees and Commission was payable to Mr. V S Radhakrishnan and Mr. Mathew Cyriac since they
were appointed as Additional Directors and Independent Directors of the Company w.e.f March 30, 2023.

None of the NEDs and IDs had any pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company during
the year under review.

Managing Director & CEO
Terms of Appointment and Remuneration of Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, Managing Director & CEO:

During FY2023, the Company paid remuneration to Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, Managing Director
& CEO (“MD & CEQ”) of the Company as provided in Annual Return for FY2022-23, which is
available on the website of the Company. The current term of Mr. Sabharwal is of five years from
April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2028. The commission to the MD & CEO is determined inter alia based
on the performance of the Company and the MD & CEO. ESOPs granted to the MD & CEOQO for
FY 2022-23 will vest in 4 tranches over a period of 4 years and are exercisable over a period of
7 years. The contract with the MD & CEO may be terminated earlier by either party giving the other
party six months’ notice of such termination or the Company paying six months’ remuneration in
lieu thereof. There is no separate provision for payment of Severance fees.

5. General Body Meetings

General Meeting

a. Annual General Meeting

Financial | Date Time |Venue Special Resolutions passed
Year
2019-20 |September 08,| 3:00 p.m. | Meeting conducted through | 1. Payment of Commission to Non-
2020 VC / OAVM pursuant to the| Executive (Non-Independent and
MCA Circular Independent) Directors of the
Company

2. Terms of Remuneration of Mr.
Rajiv Sabharwal, Managing
Director & CEO of the Company

2020-21 |June 28, 2021 10:00 a.m | Meeting conducted through Nil
VC / OAVM pursuant to the
MCA Circular
2021-22 |June 28,2022 | 10:00 a.m | Meeting conducted through | Revision in the terms of remuneration

VC / OAVM pursuant to the |of Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal, Managing
MCA Circular Director & CEO
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b.  Extraordinary General Meeting (‘EGM”):

EGM was held on March 29, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. through VC / OAVM for Re-appointment of
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal as the Managing Director & CEO of the Company and for amendment of
the Tata Capital Limited Employee Stock Purchase / Option Scheme.
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c.  Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot - details of voting pattern
- None.

d. Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise - Not applicable.
e.  Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot - None.
f.  Procedure for postal ballot - Not applicable.

Means of Communication

The ‘Investor Information & Financials’ section on the Company’s website (www.tatacapital.com) keeps
the investors updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely information
such as Financial Results, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons responsible for investor grievances,
etc. The debenture holders can also send in their queries/complaints at the designated email address at
compliance.ncd@tatacapital.com and the Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (CRPS) holders
can send their queries/complaints at crps@tatacapital.com. Financial Results are normally published in
Business Standard Newspaper.

General Information for Members and Debenture holders

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai. The Corporate Identity
Number allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is U65990MH1991PLC060670.

i. Details of Debenture Trustees and the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company are,
given below:

Debenture Trustees

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited

Ground Floor, Universal Insurance Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road
Fort, Mumbai — 400 001.

Website: www.idbitrustee.com

Tel: 91 22 40807000, Fax:91 22 66311776.

e-mail: itsl@idbitrustee.com

Registrar and Transfer Agents - Equity Shares, Preference Shares and Non-Convertible
Debentures issued on a Private Placement basis

TSR Consultants Private Limited

(formerly known as TSR Darashaw Consultants Private Limited)
(Subsidiary of Link Intime India Private Limited)

C-101, 1%t Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai-400083
Website: https://www.tcplindia.co.in/ Phone No.: 022- 66568484
E-mail: csg-unit@tcplindia.co.in

ii. Annual General Meeting for FY 2022-23

Date: June 28, 2023
Time: 10:00 A.M.
Venue: Through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means

iii. Financial Year: April 1, 2022 to March 31, 2023
iv. Dividend Payment date: On or after June 28, 2023

v. Listing on Stock Exchange

Only Unsecured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures issued by the Company on a private
placement basis are listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

National Stock Exchange of India Limited, Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Listing Fees as applicable have been paid for FY 2022-23 and FY 2023-24.
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Stock Codes/Symbol

NSE: TATACAP

Market Price data- high, low during each month in last financial year - Not Applicable

Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE sensex, CRISIL Index etc.

- Not Applicable

In case of securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason

thereof. - Not Applicable

Share Transfer System:

In terms of Regulation 61(4) read with Regulation 40(1) of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended
from time to time, securities can be transferred only in dematerialized form. All the shares of the
Company are in dematerialized form, hence, transfers of shares in electronic form are effected

through the depositories with no involvement of the Company.

Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2023:
. Equity Shareholding:

No. of Shares Shareholding % of total No. of % of total Equity
Equity Shares | Shareholders | shareholders
1-1000 6,221 0.00 12 1.56
1001-5000 5,90,898 0.02 163 21.17
5001-10000 12,03,984 0.03 175 22.73
10001-20000 26,51,911 0.08 203 26.36
20001-30000 14,38,853 0.04 61 7.92
30001-40000 11,74,069 0.03 34 4.42
40001-50000 7,78,825 0.02 18 2.34
50001-100000 31,11,138 0.09 45 5.84
100001 - Above 3,54,91,63,942 99.69 59 7.66
Grand Total 3,56,01,19,841 100 770 100
. Preference Shareholding:
No. of Shares Shareholding % of total No. of % of total
Preference Shareholders Preference
Shares shareholders
1-1000 6,78,187 6.34 902 48.68
1001-5000 19,24,364 17.99 722 38.97
5001-10000 8,90,999 8.33 99 5.34
10001-20000 8,28,200 7.74 50 2.70
20001-30000 5,65,050 5.28 21 1.13
30001-40000 3,38,500 3.16 9 0.49
40001-50000 12,87,800 12.04 26 1.40
50001-100000 9,71,050 9.08 13 0.70
100001 - Above 32,13,100 30.04 11 0.59
Grand Total 1,06,97,250 100 1,853 100
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. Category of Equity and Preference Shareholding:

Equity Shares (Face Value: ¥ 10):

Category No. of Equity Shares held % of holding
Promoter 3,36,86,83,388 94.62
Bodies Corporate 11,57,38,600 3.25
Trust 5,30,39,007 1.49
Individuals 2,26,58,846 0.64
Total (A) 3,56,01,19,841 100.00

Preference Shares (Face Value: % 1000):

Category No. of Preference Shares held % of holding
Bodies Corporate 54,65,919 51.10
Individuals 47,39,576 44.30
Trust 1,52,500 1.43
Others 3,39,255 3.17
Total (B) 1,06,97,250 100.00
Grand Total of Shares (A + B) 3,57,08,17,091

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:

All the Equity shares and Preference Shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on
March 31, 2023. Under the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number
(ISIN) allotted to the Company’s equity shares is INE976101016.

Outstanding global depository receipts or american depository receipts or warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: Not Applicable*

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Not Applicable*
Plant locations: - Not Applicable *

Address for correspondence:

11t Floor, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai 400013

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the
relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme
or any scheme or proposal:

Details pertaining to Credit Ratings obtained by the Company are included in the Directors’ Report.
Transfer of Unclaimed / Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund:

During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to Investor Education and Protection
Fund.
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Sr. |Name of Material |Date and place of |Name of Statutory Date of
No. | Subsidiary incorporation Auditor Appointment of
Statutory Auditor
1. | Tata Capital Nov 19, 2010, M/s Walker Chandiok Nov 12, 2021
Financial Services Mumbai & Co LLP, Chartered
Limited Accountants and M/s
M M Nissim & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants
2. | Tata Capital Oct 15, 2008, M/s CNK & Associates Nov 12, 2021
Housing Finance Mumbai LLP, Chartered
Limited Accountants and M/s
T R Chadha & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants
3. | Tata Cleantech Sept 27, 2011, M/s Mukund M. Chitale Nov 12, 2021
Capital Limited Mumbai & Co., Chartered
Accountants

*The equity shares of the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges and hence certain details are not

applicable to the Company.

Other Disclosure

Particulars

Details

Disclosures on materially significant related
party transactions that may have potential
conflict with the interests of listed entity at large;

There were no material related party transactions
during the year that have a conflict with the interest of
the Company.

a) Details of non - compliance by the Company,
penalty, strictures imposed on the Company
by the stock exchange, or Securities and
Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) or any
statutory authority on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years;

b) Details of penalties of stricture imposed on it
by the Reserve Bank or any other statutory
authority

NIL

NIL

Details of establishment of vigil mechanism /
whistle blower policy, and affirmation that no
personnel has been denied access to the audit
committee;

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has
established necessary Vigil Mechanism for Directors
and employees to report concerns about unethical
behaviour. No person has been denied access to the
Audit Committee.

Details of compliance with mandatory
requirements and adoption of the non-
mandatory requirements;

Details of compliance with non-mandatory and
mandatory requirements are mentioned in point no. 11
and 12 of this report respectively.
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Particulars

Details

Web link where policy for determining ‘material’
subsidiaries is disclosed;

The Company has a policy for determining ‘material
subsidiaries’ which is disclosed on its website at
https://www.tatacapital.com/content/dam/tata-capital/
pdf/tcl/TCL__Policyfordeterminingmaterialsubsidiaries.

pdf

Web link where policy on dealing with related
party transactions

The Company has a policy on dealing with related
party transactions which is disclosed on its website at
https://www.tatacapital.com/content/dam/tata-capital/
pdf/tcl/TCL_RPTPolicy.pdf

Disclosure of commodity price risks and
commodity hedging activities

Not Applicable

Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement as specified under Regulation 32
(TA).

Not Applicable

Certificate from a company secretary in
practice that none of the directors on the
board of the company have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority

The Company has obtained certificate from M/s Parikh
& Associates, Practising Company Secretaries that none
of the Directors on the Board of the Company have
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority. The same is reproduced at the end of this
report and marked as Annexure |.

Where the board had not accepted any
recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant
financial year, the same to be disclosed along
with reasons thereof:

During FY 2022-23, all the recommendations of the
various Committees of the Board were accepted by
the Board.

Total fees for all services paid by the listed
entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated
basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities
in the network firm/network entity of which the
statutory auditor is a part.

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors
is given below:

Particulars Amount (% In lakh)
(i) Audit fees 429.5

(i) Tax audit fees 19.0

(iii) Other Services (includes 41.0

out of pocket expenses)

Total 489.5

Further no fees were paid to any entity in the network
firm/network entity of which the Statutory Auditor is a
part.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment
of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013

Number of Number of Number of
complaints complaints complaints
filed during the |disposed of pending as
financial year. during the on end of the
financial year. financial year.
Nil NA NA
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Particulars Details

Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries | NIL
of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to firms/companies in which directors are
interested by name and amount’:

Familiarization Program:

Details of familiarisation programmes imparted to Independent Directors is disclosed on its website at
https://www.tatacapital.com/content/dam/tata-capital/pdf/investors-and-financial-reports/corporate-
governance/Familiarisation%20Programme.pdf

Summary Minutes A summary of the minutes of the meetings of the Board
of the subsidiary companies is placed before the Board
for noting on a quarterly basis.

Unclaimed Amount

As on March 31, 2023, % 3,396/- was lying as unclaimed with respect to the Dividend on the Equity Shares
of the Company declared for the FY2021-22. There is no unpaid / unclaimed amount with respect to the
Interest / Dividend / Redemption of NCDs / Preference Shares of the Company.

Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras above, with reasons
thereof shall be disclosed - NA

The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the discretionary requirements
as specified in Part E of Schedule Il have been adopted.

The Company has adopted the following discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule Il
i.  The Company has adopted regime of financial statement with unmodified audit opinion.

ii.  The Company has appointed separate posts of Chairman and the Managing Director & CEO such
that Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and not related to Managing Director & CEO.

iii.  The Chief Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to Audit Committee of the Company.

The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to
27 and clauses (a) to (i) of Regulation 62(1A) of SEBI Listing Regulations shall be made in the section
on corporate governance of the annual report.

The Company is in compliance with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 of
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 which have become applicable
to the Company as a High Value Debt Listed Entity (“HVDLE”) w.e.f September 7, 2021.

Declaration signed by the chief executive officer stating that the members of board of directors
and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board
of directors and senior management.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director &
CEO. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company’s website (www.tatacapital.com).

All the Directors of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the respective Codes. A declaration signed by the Managing Director & CEO to this
effect is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as Annexure Il.
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14.

15.

Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding
compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with the directors’ report.

The Company has obtained a compliance certificate from the Practising Company Secretaries on
corporate governance. The same is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as Annexure Ill.

Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account: Not Applicable
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Annexure |

CERTIFICATE
(pursuant to Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To,
The Members
Tata Capital Limited
11% Floor, Tower A,
Peninsula Business Park,
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg,
Lower Parel,
Mumbai - 400013

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Tata Capital Limited having CIN U65990MH1991PLC060670 and having registered office at
11" Floor, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park, Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing
this Certificate, in accordance with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to us by the Company & its officers and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19
pandemic. We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial Year ending on 31t March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

S. No. | Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment in Company *
1. Mr. Farokh Nariman Subedar 00028428 11/03/1997
2. Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal 00057333 01/04/2018
3. Mr. Saurabh Agrawal 02144558 28/07/2017
4. Ms. Varsha Purandare 05288076 01/04/2019
5. Ms. Aarthi Subramanian 07121802 30/10/2017
6. Ms. Malvika Sinha 08373142 01/04/2021
7. Mr. Mathew Cyriac 01903606 30/03/2023
8. Mr. V. S. Radhakrishnan 08064705 30/03/2023

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility
of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our
verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Jigyasa N. Ved

Partner

FCS: 6488 CP: 6018
UDIN: FO06488E000346487
PR No.: 1129/2021

Mumbai, 22.05.2023
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Annexure Il
DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, | hereby
confirm that, all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance
to the Code of Conduct for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Tata Capital Limited

Rajiv Sabharwal
Managing Director & CEO

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023

Annexure Il

PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of
Tata Capital Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Tata Capital Limited
(‘the Company’) for the year ended on March 31, 2023, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27,
clauses (a) to (i) of sub-regulation (1A) of Regulation 62 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and as made applicable to the Company on a comply or explain basis until
March 31, 2023, and the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance
submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI Listing Regulations.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company
for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the
representations made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic,
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2023 and had provided necessary explanation
pertaining to compliance of Regulation 17 to 27 in the quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance
submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI Listing Regulations.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Jigyasa N. Ved

Partner

FCS: 6488 CP:6018
UDIN: FO06488E000346531
PR No.: 1129/2021

Mumbai, 22.05.2023

73



TATA CAPITAL
Count on us Annual Report 2022-23

74

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ABOUT TATA CAPITAL

Tata Capital Limited (“TCL” or “Company”), registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as a
Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting Core Investment Company (“CIC”), primarily holds
investments in its subsidiaries, mainly engaged in lending and offering a wide array of services/products
in the financial services sector. TCL is a subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited. TCL and its subsidiaries
are hereinafter collectively referred to as “Tata Capital”. TCL has sponsored Private Equity Funds in India,
to which, it acts as an Investment Manager.

TCL has the following 3 subsidiaries engaged in the lending business:

i)  Tata Capital Financial Services Limited (“TCFSL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCL, is registered
with the RBI as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company
(“NBFC-ND-SI”). TCFSL is a one stop financial service provider that caters to the diverse needs of
the Retail, SME and Corporate Customers.

ii) Tata Capital Housing Finance Limited (“TCHFL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCL, is registered
as a Housing Finance Company with the National Housing Bank offering home loans, loan against
property and builder loans.

iii) Tata Cleantech Capital Limited (“TCCL”) is registered with the RBI as an Infrastructure Finance
Company. TCCLis ajoint venture between TCL and International Finance Corporation, Washington
D.C., USA, with equity holding in the ratio of 80.50:19.50 respectively. TCCL offers finance and
advisory services to entities in the clean technology and infrastructure space.

Apart from lending business, TCL has:

Private Equity Funds: The Company has set up six Private Equity Funds in India, viz. Tata Capital Growth
Fund |, Tata Capital Growth Fund Il, Tata Capital Healthcare Fund |, Tata Capital Healthcare Fund I,
Tata Capital Innovations Fund and Tata Capital Special Situations Fund - Trust (collectively referred to as
“Funds”). These Funds have been registered with SEBI as Venture Capital Funds/Alternative Investment
Funds. The Company has sponsored these Funds and acts as their Investment Manager.

Presence in Singapore: Tata Capital Pte. Ltd. (“TCPL”"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCL, has been
established in Singapore and is responsible for Tata Capital’s international presence and activities. TCPL’s
wholly-owned subsidiary in Singapore, Tata Capital Advisors Pte. Ltd. (“TCAPL”), acts as an Investment
Manager to the Private Equity Funds set up in Singapore, to which, TCL acts as an Advisor.

Tata Securities Limited (“Tata Securities”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Tata Securities
has been empaneled with several Asset Management Companies operating in India. Tata Securities is
currently engaged in the business of distribution of Mutual Fund units.

ECONOMIC & INDUSTRY SCENARIO

While the post pandemic global economy continues to be affected by geopolitical tensions and inflationary
pressures, India continues to remain a bright spot in the world economy. As per IMF, it will alone contribute
15% of the global growth in 2023 driven by its demographic dividend, pent-up demand growth, digital
infrastructure and commitment to fiscal consolidation. Overall, India is expected to close FY23 with a
GDP growth of 7%, which is the fastest amongst all the major economies. It is projected to further grow
by 6.1% in FY24 - in contrast, the projected global growth rate for same period is only 2.9%.

It is also praiseworthy to note that the Indian financial sector remained largely unaffected amidst the
recent turbulence in the US and European banking sectors. This resilience in India’s financial system is
attributable to adequate capitalisation & liquidity, healthy asset quality and proactive monitoring & timely
interventions by the regulator.
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In line with its global peers, RBI also undertook several rate hikes during the year to keep the inflationary
pressures in check. Despite this, the industry demonstrated strong credit growth of 15% YoY in Mar-23,
driven by the overall improvement of the economy and pent-up post-Covid demand. This growth was
also evidenced by several high frequency indicators including the Purchasing Manager Index readings,
buoyant tax collections, healthy vehicle and tractor sales among others.

The overall NBFC sector including HFCs benefited from resurgent domestic economic activity leading
to strong momentum in disbursements and bolstering higher business growth. Asset quality indicators
have also been improving steadily for NBFCs and HFCs on the back of higher collections and lower
than anticipated slippages on overall book including restructured book. Notably, most major players are
focusing on growing their Retail AUM. As per ICRA, the NBFC-Retail AUM is projected to have grown at
16-18% in FY23 and expected to further grow at a healthy 12-14% in FY24. However, margins will be
an area of focus as they are expected to remain under pressure in FY24 which may moderate slightly.

The overall outlook for industry remains positive as India treads on its growth trajectory leading to higher
credit demand. The growth in credit is expected to be broad based across products and segments with
key risks being elevated interest rates and inflation.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ON A CONSOLIDATED BASIS

Tata Capital witnessed a remarkable FY23 aided by growing loan book, expanding Net Interest Margins,
prudent product mix, efficient liability management, focused management of operating costs and tightened
credit policies/underwriting norms for containing credit costs.

Consolidated performance highlights of FY23 are as under:

. Recorded highest ever disbursals of ¥ 75,099 crore during the year, up by 42% YoY
. The total loan book stood at ¥ 1,20,940 crore as at March 31, 2023, up by 28% YoY
. A well-diversified portfolio comprising of Retail & SME mix at 80%

. Net interest income including other revenues of ¥ 7,023 crore up by 34% YoY

. Total credit cost stood at 0.5% for the year, down by 80 bps YoY. Our total loan loss provisions
stood at 2.7% of the loan book as on Mar’23, which is 2.2x of provisions required as per Income
Recognition and Asset Classification (IRAC) norm.

. GNPA & NNPA went down by 20 bps each to 1.7% and 0.4% respectively; Provision Coverage ratio
stood at 77%

. Net profit after tax increased YoY by 80% to ¥ 2,975 crore (including certain one-time gains).
Excluding, one time gains the Net Profit stood at ¥ 2,414 crore (+46% YoY)

. The Return on Equity increased from 15.6% in FY 2021-22 to 23.0% in FY23 (17.2% excluding
one-time gains)

. All the lending subsidiaries are well capitalized and the capital adequacy ratio is well above the
stipulated RBI norms.

. Credit rating was reaffirmed to AAA by the leading credit rating agencies.

SIMPLIFICATION OF STRUCTURE

On 28" March 2023, the Boards of TCL, TCFSL and TCCL at their respective meetings, inter alia approved
the Scheme of Arrangement (‘Scheme’) to amalgamate TCFSL (100% owned by TCL) and TCCL (80.5%
owned by TCL) with TCL.

The rationale of the Scheme is as follows:

. Consolidation of businesses would help in achieving simplified organizational structure, improve
operational and management efficiencies, streamline business operations and decision-making
process and enable greater economies of scale
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. Lead to the creation of a larger unified entity with a wider and stronger capital and asset base,
having greater capacity for conducting its operations more efficiently and competitively

. Reduction in the number of NBFCs within the group, resulting in lesser overheads including
administrative, managerial, and other expenditure, optimal utilization of resources, and provide a
common governance structure

. Consolidation of the businesses carried on by them is strategic in nature and will generate significant
business synergies thereby enhancing stakeholders’ value

. The Companies have a proven track record in the respective businesses of credit and consolidating
those will lead to pooling of knowledge and expertise and align with the business plans which will
enable the group to meet its long-term objectives

. Greater financial strength and flexibility for the merged entity

We believe this merger will create long-term value for all stakeholders, especially considering the regulatory
developments and reforms including higher regulatory standards for NBFCs. This strategic decision will
lead to creation of a larger unified entity with a stronger capital base helping us conduct operations more
efficiently and competitively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Tata Capital Limited along with subsidiaries aims to operate within an effective risk management framework
to actively manage all the material risks faced by the organisation and make it resilient to shocks in a
rapidly changing environment. It aims to establish consistent approach in management of risks and strive
to reach the efficient frontier of risk and return for the organisation and its shareholders.

Broad categories of risk faced by Tata Capital are Credit Risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk, Cyber
Security and Reputation risk. The risk management policies are well defined for various risk categories
supplemented by periodic monitoring through the various sub committees of the Board.

Credit Risk: The credit aspects in Tata Capital are primarily covered by the Credit policy and Delegation
of Authority approved by the Board of Directors. We measure, monitor and manage credit risks at
individual borrower and portfolio level. During the course of the year, we have consistently recalibrated
and re-aligned our underwriting criteria with the prevailing market environment across product lines and
the associated digital scorecards, significantly leveraging our risk analytics capabilities. This helped us
in refining our credit decisioning as well as granular monitoring of our existing portfolio.

Market Risk: Market risk management is guided by clearly laid down policies, guidelines, processes
and systems for the identification, measurement, monitoring and reporting of exposures against various
risk limits. The Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy stipulates a broad framework for liquidity risk
management to ensure that Tata Capital is in a position to meet its liquidity obligations. The ALM policy
is supplemented by LCR framework, stress testing and contingency funding plan.

Operational Risk: Tata Capital has put in place a comprehensive system of internal controls, systems
and procedures for documenting, assessing, and periodic monitoring of various risks and controls linked
to various processes across all business lines. The governance and framework for managing operational
risks is defined in the Operational Risk Management Policy. Operational Risk Management Department
engages with the First Line of Defense (Business and Operating Units) on periodic basis to identify and
mitigate operational risks to minimise the risk and its impact.

Fraud Risk: Tata Capital has adopted a robust Fraud Risk Management framework. It has an effective
and very strong fraud risk governance mechanism that encompasses controls covering below objectives:
1. Prevent (reduce the risk of fraud from occurring)

2. Detect (discover fraud when it occurs) and

3. Respond (take corrective action and remedy the harm caused by fraud)
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Changing business landscape and digitization has heightened the level of fraud risk in the environment
arising due to new methods, schemes and technology. We continue to increase our investment in fraud
prevention and detection capabilities to protect our stakeholders.

Compliance Risk: Tata Capital has a robust compliance risk management framework in place guided by
a Board approved Compliance Risk Management Charter which lays down the roles and responsibilities
of employees towards ensuring compliance with the applicable laws and regulations as also the role
of the Compliance Department in monitoring compliance. The management of compliance risk is an
integral component of the governance framework along with other internal control and risk management
frameworks.

Cyber Security Risk: The Information Security Policy has been designed to provide an overview of the
information security requirements and describe the controls that may be used to meet those requirements.
Information Security Policy defines the overall framework for information security risk management.
It documents the expected behaviour of system, data and information users. It contains appropriate
approach to combat cyber threats given the level of complexity of business and acceptable levels of risk
and cyber crisis management plan addressing the aspects: (i) Detection (ii) Response (iii) Recovery and
(iv) Containment.

Reputation Risk: Reputation risk has been defined as the risk arising from negative perception on the
part of customers, shareholders, investors, debt-holders, media reports that can adversely affect an
organization’s ability to maintain existing or establish new business relationships and continued access
to sources of funding.

Our governance culture supported by sound risk management is aimed at ensuring we remain resilient
during challenging periods and forge a sustainable future for the organisation.

The Risk Management Practices of the Company and its subsidiaries are compliant with ISO 31000:2018,
which is the International Standard for Risk Management that lays down Principles, Guidelines and
Framework for Risk Management in the Organization.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

India remains largely underpenetrated in terms of credit. The domestic credit-to-private sector (% of GDP)
ratio for India is at ~55%, which is significantly lower than other developed and emerging economies
which are well beyond 100% in terms of penetration. Thus, the possibilities for increasing the size of the
credit pie through tailored & superior credit offerings are numerous, which bodes well for our Company.
To leverage this opportunity, we have focused on following a ‘Phygital-led’ business strategy by expanding
our branch distribution as well as enhancing digital capabilities to offer a superior customer experience. It
would also help us to cater to a relatively young Indian population which is increasingly becoming digital.

Furthermore, with emergence of several new age companies, we believe there is unexplored potential for
existing large players like us to partner with these new age firms and build stronger technical capabilities,
expand business reach and multiply customer base.

Tata Capital would also focus on increasing cross-sell and wallet share by offering customized solutions
to their existing and new customers.

In terms of threats, we believe that the impact of elevated interest rates on funding costs could be visible
and lead to slowdown of credit offtake as well as increase in credit costs. Growing competitive intensity
from banking sector can also affect the growth of NBFCs like ours.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Tata Capital’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and
conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance with laws
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and regulations. The internal control system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the
design, adequacy and efficacy of Tata Capital’s internal controls, including its systems and processes and
compliance with regulations and procedures. Internal Audit Reports are discussed with the Management
and are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board, which also reviews the adequacy and effectiveness
of the internal controls in Tata Capital. Our internal control system is commensurate with our size and
the nature of our operations.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The management has laid down IFC framework covering set of standards, processes and structure across
the organization with reference to financial and non-financial controls to ensure that controls are adequate
and are operating effectively. Internal Finance control framework has been established in line with the
Internal Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSQ”) and Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’).

During FY23, independent testing was conducted basis process walkthrough and review of samples as
per documented controls in the Risk & Control matrix. Testing is performed for each control through an
independent firm, on behalf of Management confirming adequacy and effectiveness of controls. During
the review there were no material deficiencies or design ineffectiveness of controls was observed.

Inputs from the Internal Financial control exercise and the Risk & Control matrix is also used by Internal
Audit for their annual planning as part of the Risk Based Internal Audit policy.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Tata Capital had 8,350 permanent employees as of March 31, 2023.

Tata Capital firmly believes that Human Capital is its most important asset. A series of engagement
interventions across identified key themes were undertaken to increase employee morale and the initiatives
focused on key aspects such as physical and mental wellness, celebrations, leadership engagement
sessions, fitness and sports, and family engagement activities.

Continuing with its journey of “Happiness at the workplace”, the Employee Engagement & Happiness
Survey — 2023 was conducted. Tata Capital had an impressive participation rate of 94% and the
Engagement score was 85% (FY23-83%) which was higher than the comparative benchmarks identified.
Tata Capital also featured amongst India’s Best Workplaces™ in BFSI — Top 50 which indicated the
commitment of building a High-Trust, High-Performance Culture.

This survey was an important step in the Company’s journey to create a more positive and an even more
joyful workplace by continuously seeking employee feedback. As a critical step post the survey, action
planning was ensured, and several initiatives are being deployed to further strengthen engagement
across the Company.

During the period under review, the environment experienced unprecedented changes and this meant
that adapting to the new norm at Tata Capital was critical. Tata Capital continued to deploy robust learning
programs through Instructor Led Virtual Training (ILVT) sessions complimented by digital learning to
ensure continuous development of the employees. Learn, unlearn and relearn continues to be Tata
Capital’'s mantra.

The Advanced Learning Management System & the Learning App continue to be a central depository and
source to promote anytime, anywhere learning. The learning library has now been added and built with
even more functional and behavioural modules that are byte sized, relevant and applicable with dedicated
digital learning campaigns to enhance the Learner Engagement and a higher e-learning coverage.

In addition, several leadership development programs were conducted in collaboration with reputed
partners. Learning initiatives were well recognized by the employees through the Happiness and
Engagement survey (Great Place to Work) and emerged as one of the major strengths for Tata Capital.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO
THE MEMBERS OF
TATA CAPITAL LIMITED
Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Tata Capital Limited

(‘the Holding Company’ or ‘the Parent’) and its subsidiaries (the parent and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group’), and its associates, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 March 2023 and the consolidated statement of profit (including other comprehensive income), the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (‘the Consolidated Financial Statements’).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries
as were audited by the other auditors, and in case of entities referred to in paragraph 17 below, based
on consideration of management provided statements, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group, and its associates as at 31 March 2023, and its consolidated
profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group, and its associates in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained along with the consideration of
audit reports of the other auditors referred to in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

Impairment of investments in associates
Charge: X 765 lakhs for year ended 31 March 2023
Provision: ¥ 12,413 lakhs at 31 March 2023

Management Review”

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 8 and 11 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements:
Investments” “Note 2 (vii) to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies-
use of estimates and judgements”, “Note 45” to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements: Risk

Subjective estimate

Recognitionand measurement ofinvestmentsin subsidiaries
and associates involve significant management judgement.

TheHolding Companyhasinvestmentinsubsidiaries totalling
to ¥ 10,96,593 Lakhs and associate companies totalling to
% 10,720 Lakhs before elimination for consolidation. Such
investments are individually assessed for impairment as
per the requirements of Ind AS 36 — “Impairment of Assets.”

We have identified impairment testing of investments in
subsidiaries and associates as a Key Audit Matter due
to the high magnitude of the carrying value. Considering
that the Holding Company is a Core Investment Company
(‘CIC’) which is primarily required to hold investments
and loans in group companies as per Reserve Bank
of India Master Directions for CICs, impairment testing
of investments in such group companies continues to
remain an area of focus for the audit. The key areas
where we identified greater levels of management
judgement and therefore increased levels of audit focus
in the Holding Company’s estimation of impairment are:

» As part of such impairment assessment, management
considers financial information, liquidity, and solvency
position of investments in subsidiaries and associates.
Management also considers other factors such as
assessment of the investee Holding company’s
operations, business performance and modifications,
if any, in the auditors’ report of such subsidiaries and
associates. For some investee companies which are
classified as associates, the management sometimes
involves an external valuer to assess impairment.

» The Holding Company has investments in Domestic
Venture Capital Funds/ Alternative Investment Funds
(the Funds’), which are classified as its subsidiaries,
and the impairment assessment for such Funds
is done by considering the net asset value of the
respective Fund. The net asset value is determined
based on the value of the underlying investments
held by these Funds. The management involves an
external valuer to assess impairment or the fair value
of the underlying investments. This process involves
consideration of various valuation methodologies
such as income or market approach, includes data
inputs, assumptions and market related knowledge
that requires management judgement and expertise.

Our

audit procedures included the

following:
Design / controls

>

Understanding of the process, evaluating
the design and testing the operating
effectiveness in respect of impairment / fair
value assessment of investments done by
management.

Evaluating management’'s controls over
collation of relevant information used for
determining estimates for impairment / fair
value of investments.

Substantive tests

>

>

Testing appropriate implementation of
policy of impairment by management.

Reconciling the financial information
mentioned in impairment assessment to
underlying source details. Also, testing
the reasonableness of management’s
estimates considered in such assessment.

Obtaining and reading latest audited/
management provided financial statements
of subsidiaries and associates and noting
key financial attributes / potential indicators
of impairment.

Challenge appropriateness and validity
of management judgements, by critically
evaluating the risks that have been
addressed by management in the valuation
approach.

Obtaining independent valuation reports of
investments in associates and investments
held by the Funds and involving a valuation
specialist to test the appropriateness of the
fair value of these investments, wherever
necessary and applicable, for assessing
impairment thereon.

Assess the completeness, accuracy
and relevance of data inputs for the said
purpose.

Assessing the factual accuracy and
appropriateness of the disclosures made
in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements.
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Hence, we determined that the impairment of investments
in subsidiaries and associates, has a high degree of
estimation, with a potential range of reasonable outcomes
significantly high.

Impairment of loans and advances to customers
Refer note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Subjective estimate

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has reported gross loan

assets of ¥ 1,20,16,427 Lakhs against which an impairment

loss of % 3,19,325 Lakhs has been recorded. The Group has

recognized impairment provision for loan assets based on

the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) approach laid down under

‘Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments’. The estimation of ECL

on financial instruments involves significant management

judgement and estimates and the use of different modelling

techniques and assumptions which could have a material

impact on reported profits. Significant management

judgement and assumptions involved in measuring ECL is

required with respect to:

» Completeness and accuracy of the data used to create
assumption in the model

» determining the criteria for a significant increase in credit
risk

» factoring in future economic indicators

» techniques used to determine probability of default, loss
given default and exposure at default.

These parameters are derived from the Group’s
internally developed statistical models and other historical
data.

Further, continuous regulatory overview and changes in the
light of economic environment makes this a significant audit
area.

On the basis of an estimate made by the management, an
overlay to the tune of ¥ 17,276 lakhs has been recognized
by the Group as at 31 March 2023. The basis of estimates
and assumptions involved in arriving at the overlay are
monitored by the Group periodically and significantly
depend on future developments in the economy including
expected impairment losses.

Disclosure

The disclosures regarding the Group’s application of Ind AS
109 are key to explaining the key judgements and material
inputs to ECL results. Further, disclosures to be provided
as per RBI circulars with regards to non-performing assets
and provisions is also an area of focus. Considering the
significance of the above matter to the overall financial
statements, additional complexities involved and extent
of management’s estimates and judgements involved, it
required significant auditor attention, hence the key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included the
following:

Design / controls

Key aspects of our controls testing for the
Group involved the following:

. Evaluating the appropriateness of
the impairment principles used by
management based on the requirements
of Ind AS 109 and our business
understanding.

. For the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries, testing the ‘Governance
Framework’ controls over validation,
implementation, and model monitoring in
line with the RBI guidance.

Substantive tests

Key aspects of our testing included the
following:

. Inquiries with Management regarding
the ECL framework, Group policies
on ECL and management overlay
and reasonableness of the Group’s
consideration on the ECL determination.

. Performing testing of completeness,
accuracy and relevance of data
while arriving at the provisions at the
consolidated level.

. Inquiring with respective component
auditors about the above matters and
seeking the explanations based on their
audit procedures.
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Information technology system for the financial reporting and Consolidation process

The Group is highly dependent upon its information
technology (IT) systems for carrying out its operations and
owing to the significant volume of transactions that are
processed, which impacts key financial accounting and
reporting. The company has put in place the IT General
Controls and application controls to ensure that the
information produced by the company is reliable. Among
other things, the Management also uses the information
produced by the entity's IT systems for accounting,
preparation and the presentation of the financial statements.
Considering numerous entities across different business
lines to be covered by consolidation, our audit strategy
included focus on entity’s key IT systems relevant to our
audit due to their potential pervasive impact on the financial

We have assessed the IT systems and controls

over

financial reporting, which includes

carrying out the key audit procedures, but
were not limited to the following:

We obtained an understanding of the
Group’s key IT systems, IT General
Controls which covered access controls,
program/ system changes, program
development and computer operations
i.e. job processing, data/ system
backup and incident management and
application controls relevant to our audit
We also tested the Hyperion system and
recalculated the data output with the

statements, hence a key audit matter.

trial balance of the entities covered by
consolidation to ensure completeness
and accuracy.

Other Information

5.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report but does not include the
Consolidated Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The Other Information is expected
to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done / audit
report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

8.
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The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements, that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs,
consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated
cash flows of the Group, and its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of
the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group
and of its associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and of its associates and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
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9. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability
of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

10.  The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of
its associates are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
associates.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

11.  Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

12.  As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

12.1. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

12.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies which are companies incorporated in India have adequate internal financial controls
with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

12.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

12.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as a going concern.

12.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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13.

14.

15.

12.6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements
of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors for subsidiary companies and
provided by the Management for associate companies, such other auditors and Management
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current year and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

16.

17.

18.
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We did not audit the financial statements of 4 subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total
assets of ¥ 1,31,07,547.36 Lakhs as at 31 March 2023, total revenues of ¥ 12,86,798.98 Lakhs and
net cash flows amounting to ¥ 96,540.81 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Financial Statements also include the Group’s share of net profit of ¥ 14,669.82
Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2023, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements,
in respect of 18 associates, whose financial statements / financial information have not been audited
by us. These financial statements / financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us
by the Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates
to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these associates, and our report in terms of
section 143(3) of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associates, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements / financial information. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements / financial information are
not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial information certified by the Management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

19.  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of audit reports
of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as were audited by other
auditors and management provided financial statement for associates, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

19.1 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements.

19.2 Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors.

19.3 The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

19.4 Inour opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

19.5 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, and associate companies
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, and its associate companies
incorporated in India are disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

19.6 With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure A’

19.7 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the reports of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies, and management provided
information in respect of associate companies incorporated in India which were not audited
by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company, its subsidiary
companies, and its associate companies incorporated in India to its directors is in accordance
with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies, and its associate companies incorporated in India is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

20.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of audit reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

20.1 The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2023 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates — Refer Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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20.2

20.3

204

20.5

20.6

20.7

20.8

Provision has been made in the Consolidated Financial Statements, as required under the
applicable law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts — Refer Note 50 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in respect of such
items as it relates to the Group and its associates.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies and associate companies
incorporated in India.

The respective managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors
of such subsidiaries to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The respective managements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented
to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries, respectively, to best of their knowledge and
belief, that no funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us and those performed by auditors of the subsidiaries incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our
or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or other auditors to believe that the representation
under para 20.4 and 20.5 contain any material misstatement.

As stated in Note 51 to the Consolidated Financial statements

a. The final dividend proposed in previous year, declared and paid by the Company during
the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

b. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date
of this audit report is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

c. The Board of directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the year which is
subject to approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The amount
of dividend proposed is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended), provides for
the feature of recording of audit trail (edit log) facility in the accounting software used by the
Companies in the group for maintenance of books of account, which is applicable from financial
year beginning 1 April 2023. The reporting under clause (g) of Rule 11 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 would be done from financial year 2023-24 onwards.
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21.  With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order,2020 (‘CARQ’) issued by Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be
included in Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARO reports issued by us for the Company and based on our consideration of CARO reports issued
by respective auditors of the companies included in consolidated financial statements, we report that
there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

Hasmukh B Dedhia

Mumbai Partner
27 April 2023 ICAI Membership No: 033494
UDIN: 23033494BGWSQN4223
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Consolidated Financial

Statements of Tata Capital Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph '19.6’ under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

Opinion

1.

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Tata Capital Limited as of and
for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
the Consolidated Financial Statements of Tata Capital Limited (“the Holding Company”), its subsidiary
companies, and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, and its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established
by the respective companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘the Guidance Note’).

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, and its associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the internal
controls over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4.
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, and its associates,
which are companies incorporated in India, internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing (‘SA"), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Those
SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference
to the Consolidated Financial Statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
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depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated Financial
Statements

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated
Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

9.  Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements in so
far as it relates to 3 subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

Hasmukh B Dedhia

Mumbai Partner
27 April 2023 ICAlI Membership No: 033494
UDIN: 23033494BGWSQN4223

91



TATA CAPITAL

Count on us

Annual Report 2022-23

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

(ii)

other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Other payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 3,05,888 2,08,162
(b) Bank balance other than (a) above 4 25,771 5,420
(c) Derivative financial instruments 5 22,958 3,521
(d) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 6 (i) 7,361 3,233
(i) Other receivables 6 (i) 39 22
(e) Loans 7 1,16,75,613 90,11,053
(f) Investments 8 12,65,897 6,78,008
(g) Other financial assets 9 36,506 25,090
1,33,40,033 99,34,509
(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current tax assets (net) 10 (i) 14,087 16,565
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 10 (ii) 38,107 84,099
(c) Investments accounted using equity method 11 59,507 1,06,608
(d) Investment property 12 1,987 2,016
(e) Property, plant and equipment 12 48,627 56,280
(f) Capital work-in-progress 12 (i) 1,130 377
(g) Intangible assets under development 12 (ii) 872 772
(h) Other intangible assets 12 3,255 2,514
(i) Right of use assets 37 19,393 11,133
(j) Other non-financial assets 13 29,227 22,683
2,16,192 3,03,047
Total Assets 1,35,56,225 1,02,37,556
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments 5 6,232 34,305
(b) Payables 14
(iy Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 703 203
and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors 1,23,197 1,02,222
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
(% in lakh)
Particulars Note As at As at
No. March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(c) Debt securities 15 51,37,558 40,69,140
(d) Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 16 54,93,413 38,63,992
(e) Subordinated liabilities 17 7,02,620 6,88,845
(f) Lease liabilites 37 20,538 12,345
(g) Other financial liabilities 18 1,95,425 1,26,873
1,16,79,686 88,97,925
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 10 (iii) 30,677 34,939
(b) Provisions 19 9,946 7,302
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 20 21,049 13,791
61,672 56,032
(3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 21 3,50,707 3,46,335
(b) Other equity 22 13,45,166 8,24,971
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 16,95,873 11,71,306
(4) Non-controlling interest 1,18,994 1,12,293
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,35,56,225 1,02,37,556
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 3to 54
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

employee benefit plans

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Revenue from operations
(i) Interestincome 23 11,89,590 9,08,975
(ii) Dividend income 79 82
(iii) Rental income 26,926 30,339
(iv) Fee and commission income 24 31,414 25,813
(v) Net gain on fair value changes 25 6,374 39,923
(vi) Net gain on derecognition of associates 81,458 5,715
(vii) Net gain on derecognition of investment carried at - 87
amortised cost
I Total revenue from operations 13,35,841 10,10,934
Il Other income 26 27,859 20,207
il Total income (I+ll) 13,63,700 10,31,141
Expenses
(i) Finance costs 27 6,60,078 4,88,903
(ii) Impairment on investment in associates 765 267
(iii) Impairment on financial instruments 28 57,429 1,08,061
(iv) Employee benefits expense 29 1,28,541 88,980
(v) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 12 22,602 27,588
(vi) Other expenses 30 1,15,299 93,534
IV Total expenses 9,84,714 8,07,333
V Profit from continuing operations before exceptional 3,78,986 2,23,808
items, share of net profits of investments accounted
for using equity method and tax
VI Share in profit of associates 14,670 10,964
VIl Profit from continuing operations before 3,93,656 2,34,772
exceptional items and tax (V + VI)
VIl Exceptional items = -
IX Profit before tax from continuing operations (VII + VIIl) 3,93,656 2,34,772
Tax expenses
(i) Current tax 1 1,08,455 66,138
(i) Deferred tax 1" (7,960) (11,009)
(iii) Short / (Excess) of earlier years 1" (1,416) (438)
X Net tax expense 99,079 54,691
X1 Profit for the year from continuing operations (1X-X) 2,94,577 1,80,081
Xl Other Comprehensive Income
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Owners of the Company
(a) Remeasurement of defined employee benefit plans (1,233) (247)
(b) Current tax relating to Remeasurement of defined 314 62
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
(c) Changes in fair values of investment in 2,22,995 -
equities carried at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
(d) Tax on Changes in fair values of investment in (53,262) -
equities carried at FVTOCI
Non controlling interest
(a) Remeasurement of the defined employee benefit (8) -
plans (net of tax)
(b) Changes in fair values of investment in equities 5,564 -
carried at FVTOCI
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Owners of the Company
(a) Debt instruments measured through FVTOCI (1,212) (1,068)
(b) Income tax on Debt instruments through FVTOCI 211 182
(c) Fair value loss on financial assets carried at FVTOCI (387) (1,056)
(d) Income tax relating to fair value gain on financial 101 327
asset measured through FVTOCI
(e) The effective portion of gain on hedging 4,039 5,283
instruments in a cash flow hedge
(f) Income tax relating to the effective portion of gain (1,027) (1,361)
on hedging instruments in a cash flow hedge
(g) Share of other comprehensive income in (858) 1,338
associates (net)
(h) Exchange differences in translating financial 4,763 1,603
statements of foreign operations
Non controlling interest
(a) Fair value loss on financial asset measured (39) (134)
through FVTOCI
(b) The effective portion of loss on hedging 43 124
instruments in a cash flow hedge
Total Other Comprehensive Income 1,80,004 5,053
XIll Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XI+XIl) 4,74,581 1,85,134
XIV Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the company 2,97,490 1,64,821
Non-controlling interest (2,913) 15,260
XV Other comprehensive income for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the company 1,74,444 5,063
Non-controlling interest 5,560 (10)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
XVI Total comprehensive income for the year
attributable to: (XIV+XV)
Owners of the company 4,71,934 1,69,884
Non-controlling interest 2,647 15,250
XVII Earnings per equity share (Face value : 10 per 38
share)
(1) Basic (%) 8.46 4.69
(2) Diluted (%) 8.46 4.69
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 31to 54
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(% in lakh)

Particulars

Note
No.

For the Year

Ended

March 31, 2023

For the Year

March 31, 2022

Ended

1. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Net loss / (gain) on derecognition of property,
plant and equipment and right-to-use assets
Interest expenses
Interest income
Dividend income
Provision for leave encashment
Exchange gains (net)
Net loss/(gain) on fair value changes
- Realised
- Unrealised
Net loss / (gain) on derecognition of investment in
Associates
Net gain on derecognition of investment carried at
amortised cost
Rental income on fair valuation of security deposit
Share in profit of associates
Share based payments to employees
Interest on income tax refund
Impairment on financial instruments
Impairment on investments
Provision against derivative current credit exposure
Provision against trade receivables
Provision against assets held for sale

Interest paid

Interest received

Interest received on income tax refund
Dividend received

Cash generated from operation before working
capital changes

Movement in working capital:

(Increase) / decrease in loans

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease / (Increase) in other financial /
non financial assets

Increase / (decrease) in other financial /
non financial liabilities

Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Increase in trade payable

Taxes paid (net)
NET CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

3,93,656 2,34,772
22,602 27,588

310 (1,014)
6,60,078 4,88,903
(11,89,590) (9,08,975)
(79) (82)

512 89

(282) (8)
(6,433) (8,327)

58 (31,596)

(81,458) (5,715)

= (87)

(3,907) -
(14,670) (10,964)
2,148 1,510

(208) (54)
55,775 1,08,081

765 264

67 -

1,587 (17)

2 (1)
(1,59,069) (1,05,633)
(5,90,478) (4,48,837)
11,42,176 8,62,646
208 54

2,011 113
3,94,848 3,08,343
(26,76,394) (17,08,722)
(5,730) (566)
(17,442) 26,112
73,479 (23,420)
(1,325) (314)
21,976 21,629
(26,05,436) (16,85,281)
(1,08,383) (61,746)
(23,18,971) (14,38,684)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
(including capital advances)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Investment in associates

Purchase of mutual fund units

Purchase of other investments

Proceeds from redemption of mutual fund units
Proceeds from sale of associates

Proceeds from sale of other investments

Bank Balances not considered as cash and cash
equivalents

NET CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Equity Shares

Infusion of capital by minority shareholders
Payout of income/gain to contributors

Repayment of lease obligation

Redemption of preference shares

Share and debt issue expenses

Dividend paid on equity & preference shares
Proceeds from debt Securities

Proceeds from borrowings (other than debt securities)
Proceeds from subordinated liabilities

Repayment of debt securities

Repayment of borrowings (other than debt securities)
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

NET CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(% in lakh)
Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
2. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(20,799) (3,996)
6,049 6,357
(15,146) (18,914)
(3,72,05,094)|  (2,40,59,295)
(8,72,099) (6,14,931)
3,70,68,001 2,39,12,414
1,00,846 11,429
7,30,884 5,07,395
(19,588) (2,169)
(2,26,946) (2,61,710)
59,379 -
20,316 20,080
(18,275) (3,571)
(4,104) (3,670)
(4,020) (4,988)
(4,211) (1,735)
(13,611) (8,244)
36,66,450 65,28,619
45,82,843 48,09,067
12,900 1,07,100
(26,34,761) (56,63,063)
(30,12,018) (40,67,245)
(7,931) (6,792)
26,42,957 17,05,558
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(% in lakh)
Particulars Note For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 97,040 5,164
EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT THE 2,08,162 2,02,691
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
Exchange difference on translation of foreign 686 307
currency cash and cash equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT THE 3,05,888 2,08,162
END OF THE YEAR
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 3 to 54
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

a Equity share capital

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No. of Shares

® in lakh)

No. of Shares

® in lakh)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
equity shares outstanding at the
beginning of the year

period errors
Restated balance
Add: Shares issued during the year:

trust

by ESOP trust
Add/(Less): Loans to Employees (net)

Changes in equity share capital due to prior

3,46,33,69,745

3,46,335

3,46,36,42,214

3,46,360

Add: Subscription of right issue by ESOP

Add/(less): Net shares issued to Employees

3,46,33,69,745
4,39,52,097
(6,63,088)

4,22,080

3,46,335
4,395
(66)

42

1

3,46,36,42,214

(2,72,469)

3,46,360

(27)

2

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

100

the year

equity shares outstanding at the end of

3,50,70,80,834

3,50,707

3,46,33,69,745

3,46,335

Other equity

(X in lakh)

Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Securities
premium

Capital
reserve

Capital

Redemption

Reserve

Debenture
Redemption
Reserve

Special
Reserve
Account

Retained
earnings

General
reserve

Employee
stock
option
outstanding
account

Balance as at
April 1, 2021
Changes in
accounting policy /
prior period errors
Restated

balance as at

April 1, 2021

Profit for the year (a)
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax (b)
Total comprehensive
income for the year
(c)=(a)*+(b)
Elimination against
shares held by the
ESOP Trust

Share issue
expenses
Employee share
options (net)
Transfer to Special
Reserve Account

Elimination against

shares held by the
ESOP Trust

2,93,323

43

575

30,000

1,39,222

1,77,672

1,785

2,111

2,93,323

43

575

30,000

1,39,222

1,77,672

1,64,821

1,785

2,111

(112)

)

35,113

1,64,821

(35,113)
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Particulars

Reserves and surplus

Securities
premium

Capital
reserve

Capital
Redemption
Reserve

Debenture
Redemption
Reserve

Special
Reserve
Account

Retained
earnings

General
reserve

Employee
stock
option
outstanding
account

Loan given to
employees for
ESOP's held
Interim dividend

on equity shares
(including tax on
dividend)
Increase/(decrease)
in non-controlling
interests due to
dilution/ divestment/
acquisition

Payout of income to
contributors

2,847

Balance as at
March 31, 2022

2,93,214

43

575

30,000

1,74,335

3,10,227

2,026

3,279

Changes in
accounting policy /
prior period errors

Restated balance
as at April 1, 2022

Profit for the year (a)

Other
comprehensive
income, net of tax (b)

Total comprehensive
income for the year
(c)=(a)+(b)
Elimination against
shares held by the
ESOP Trust

Issue of equity
shares

Share issue
expenses

Employee share
options (net)
Transfer to Special
Reserve Account
Transfer to General
Reserve Account

Loan given to
employees for
ESOP's held
Interim dividend on
equity shares
Increase/(decrease)
in non-controlling
interests due to
dilution/ divestment/
acquisition

Payout of income to
contributors

Other adjustments

2,93,214

43

575

30,000

1,74,335

3,10,227

2,97,490

2,026

3,279

(815)

54,984

(8)

(30,000)

2,97,490

(65,013)

(5,542)

(2,011)

(346)

30,135

1,651

(135)

Balance as at
March 31, 2023

3,47,377

43

575

2,39,348

5,34,805

32,161

4,795
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Particulars

Items of other comprehensive income

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

Remeasure-
ment of de-
fined benefit
liability
lasset

Fair value
changes
of financial
instrument
measured
at fair value
through
other com-
prehensive
income

Debt
instruments
through
Other
Compre-
hensive
Income

Cash flow
hedge
reserve

Equity in-
struments
through
Other
Compre-
hensive
Income

Total Other
Equity

Non-
Controlling
interest

Total

Balance as at

April 01, 2021

Changes in accounting
policy / prior period errors
Restated balance as at
April 1, 2021

Profit for the year (a)
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax (b)
Total comprehensive
income for the year
(c)=(a)+(b)

Elimination against
shares held by the ESOP
Trust

Issue of equity shares
Share issue expenses
Employee share

options (net)

Loan given to employees
for ESOP's held
Increase/(decrease) in
non-controlling interests
due to dilution/
divestment/acquisition
Payout of income to
contributors

7,504

(170)

1,324

(29)

(2,420)

6,50,940

83,379

7,34,319

7,504

1,603

(170)

(185)

1,324

609

(29)

(886)

(2,420)

3,922

6,50,940

1,64,821
5,063

83,379

15,260
(10)

7,34,319

1,80,081
5,053

1,603

(185)

609

(886)

3,922

1,69,884

(112)

@)
1,409

2,847

15,250

17,233

(3,569)

1,85,134

(112)

@
1,409

20,080

(3,569)

Balance as at March
31, 2022

9,107

(355)

1,933

(915)

1,502

8,24,971

1,12,293

9,37,264

Changes in accounting
policy / prior period errors

Restated balance as at
April 1, 2022

Profit for the year (a)
Other comprehensive
income, net of tax (b)
Total comprehensive
income for the year
(c)=(a)+(b)

Elimination against
shares held by the ESOP
Trust

Issue of equity shares
Share issue expenses
Employee share options
(net)

Transfer to Special Re-
serve Account

Transfer to General
Reserve Account

Loan given to employees
for ESOP's held

9,107

4,763

(355)

(919)

1,933

(1,144)

(915)

(1,001)

1,502

3,012

1,69,733

8,24,971

2,97,490
174,444

1,12,293

(2,913)
5,560

9,37,264

2,94,577
1,80,004

4,763

(919)

(1,144)

(1,001)

3,012

1,69,733

4,71,934

(815)

54,984
(8)
1,651

2,647

4,74,581

(815)

54,984
®)
1,651




MW

Items of other comprehensive income
Foreign | Remeasure-| Fair value Debt Cash flow | Equity in-
currency | ment of de- | changes |instruments| hedge |struments Non-
Particulars translation |fined benefit| of financial | through | reserve | through Total Other Controlling Total
reserve liability instrument Other Other Equity interest
lasset measured | Compre- Compre-
at fair value| hensive hensive
through Income Income
other com-
prehensive
income
Interim dividend on equity - - - - - - (5,542) - (5,542)
shares
Increase in non-con- - - - - - - (2,011) 22,327 20,316
trolling interests due to
investments
Payout of income to - - - - - - - (18,273) (18,273)
contributors
Other adjustments - - - 346 - - - - -
Balance as at March 13,870 (1,274) 789 (1,570) 4,514| 1,69,733| 13,45,166 1,18,994| 14,64,160
31,2023
Significant accounting policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements 3 to 54
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NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tata Capital Limited (“TCL” or “Company”) is a subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited. In May 2012, the
Company was registered with the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) as a Systemically Important Non-Deposit
Accepting Core Investment Company (“CIC”). The Company together with its subsidiaries (collectively,
the Group),is primarily engaged in lending and investing activities. Further one of the subsidiary within
the Group is also engaged in providing broking services and undertaking trading activities.

Information on the Group’s subsidiaries and associates is provided in Note 31 & 32.

As a CIC, TCL is a primary holding Company, holding investments in its subsidiaries and other group
companies and carries out only such activities as are permitted under the guidelines issued by RBI for
CICs. The Company is domiciled in India and incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 and listed
its non-convertible debentures and commercial papers with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange
Limited.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(amended), notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) (as amended),
other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India and National
Housing Bank as applicable to NBFCs and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
Any application guidance / clarifications / directions issued by RBI/NHB or other regulators are
implemented as and when they are issued / applicable, the guidance notes/announcements issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance
with other statutory promulgations require a different treatment.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued Ind AS is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing Ind AS required a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use. The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
(BOD) on April 27, 2023.

ii. Presentation of consolidated financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared
and presented in the format prescribed in the Division Il of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
(the ‘Act’). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements
of Ind AS.

A summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information is in accordance
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) as specified under
Section 133 of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to
settle on a net basis.

Amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakh, which is
also the Group’s functional currency, and all amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lakh
unless otherwise indicated.

ii. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period as
explained in the accounting policies below.
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Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services at the time of entering into the transaction.

Principles of Consolidation

The Group is able to exercise control over the operating decision of the investee companies,
resulting in variable returns to the Group and accordingly, the same are classified as investment
in subsidiary and line by line consolidation is carried out under the principles of consolidation. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the subsidiaries and associates used in the consolidation are drawn
up to the same reporting date as that of the Group i.e., March 31, 2023, except for certain
associates for which financial statements as on the reporting date are not available. These have
been consolidated based on their latest available financial information. Necessary adjustments
have been made for the effects of significant transactions and other events between the
reporting dates of such financial information and the consolidated Financial Statements.

b) Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when itis exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statement of the subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences
until the date on which control ceases. The consolidated financial statements of the Group and
its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by grouping together like items
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group
transactions and resulting unrealised profits or losses, unless cost cannot be recovered.

c) The excess of cost to the Group of its investments in the subsidiaries over its share of equity
of the subsidiaries, at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiaries were made, is
recognised as “Goodwill on Consolidation” and is tested for impairment on annual basis. On
the other hand, where the share of equity in the subsidiaries as on the date of investment is in
excess of cost of investments of the Group, it is recognised as ‘Capital Reserve’ and shown
under the head ‘Reserves & Surplus’ in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

d) Incaseofanoverseas subsidiary, being a non-integral operation, revenue items are consolidated
at the average rate prevailing during the year. All assets and liabilities are converted at the rates
prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation is recognised
in the “Foreign Currency Translation Reserve”.

e) Non-controlling interest (NCI) are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net identifiable assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions.

f)  When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date of control is lost. Any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in associates:

a) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the share of profit/ (loss) of associates, which
have been accounted for using the equity method as per Ind AS 28- (Accounting for Investments
in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements). Accordingly, the share of profit/ (loss)
of the associates (the loss being restricted to the cost of the investment) have been added/
deducted to the costs of investments.

b) The difference between the cost of investment in the associate and the share of net assets
at the time of acquisition of shares in the associate is identified in the Consolidated Financial
Statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be and adjusted against the
carrying amount of investment in the associate.
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c) The carrying amount of investment in associates is reduced to recognise impairment, if any,
when there is objective evidence of impairment.

d) Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss/statement of other
comprehensive income.

Measurement of fair values:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Anumber of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values,
for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes for certain items in these consolidated
financial statements is determined considering the following measurement methods:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

(including derivatives instruments)

Net defined benefit (asset)/liability Fair value of planned assets less present value of
defined benefit obligations

Property plant and equipment Value in use under Ind AS 36

Fair values are categorized into different levels (Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3) in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques. When measuring the fair value of an asset or
a liability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure
the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair
value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The levels are described as follows:

a) Level 1:inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement date.

b) Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

c) Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Valuation model and framework used for fair value measurement and disclosure of financial
instrument Refer notes 43(a) & 43(b)

The Group recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management of the Group to make judgements, assumptions and estimates that affect the reported
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balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date
of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenses for the
reporting period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates
involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in the consolidated financial
statements have been disclosed as applicable in the respective notes to accounts.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Future results could differ from these
estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes aware of
changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their
effect are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Judgements:

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have most significant effect
on the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following note:

Note xii - classification of financial assets: assessment of the business model within which the
assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Assumptions and estimation of uncertainties:

Information about assumptions and estimation of uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2023 are included in the following notes:

xiv. Impairment test of non-financial assets: key assumption underlying recoverable amounts.

xiii. The Group’s EIR methodology: rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant
rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken.

xiv. Useful life of property, plant, equipment and intangibles.

35. Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax positions.

xxiii.Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

xvi. Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.
43. Determination of the fair value of financial instruments with significant unobservable inputs.

45. Impairment of financial instruments: assessment of whether credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, assumptions used in estimating recoverable
cash flows and incorporation of forward-looking information in the measurement of expected
credit loss (ECL).

The weights assigned to different scenarios for measurement of forward looking ECL, i.e. best
case, worst case and base case also requires judgement.

viii. Interest

Interest consists of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs,
as well as a profit margin.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR) is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid or received that are incremental and directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or liability.
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Interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of non-credit impaired
financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit
loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR
to the amortised cost of the credit-impaired financial assets {i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset
after adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance (ECLs)}. The Group assesses the collectability of
the interest on credit impaired assets at each reporting date. Based on the outcome of such assessment,
the interest income accrued on credit impaired financial assets are either accounted for as income or
written off as per the write off policy of the Group.

Income not integral to effective interest rate (EIR) method under Ind AS 109 and Fee
and commission income from services and distribution of financial products:

The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets to which
Ind AS 109 ‘Financial instruments’ is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model
as set out in Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. Revenue is measured at the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation in accordance with Ind AS 115. The Group
identifies contract(s) with a customer and its performance obligations under the contract, determines
the transaction price and its allocation to the performance obligations in the contract and recognises
revenue only on satisfactory completion of performance obligations.

Fees and commission income

(a) The Group recognises service and administration charges towards rendering of additional
services to its loan customers on satisfactory completion of service delivery. Bounce charges
levied on customers for non-payment of instalment on the contractual date is recognised on
realisation.

(b) Fees on value added services and products are recognised on rendering of services and
products to the customer.

(c) Distribution income is earned by distribution of services and products of other entities under
distribution arrangements. The income so earned is recognised on successful distribution on
behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant uncertainty of its recovery.

(d) Foreclosure charges are collected from loan customers for early payment / closure of loan and
are recognised on realisation.

(e) Wealth Management Business:

(i) Brokerage / Distribution /Fee Income Bonds / Fixed Deposits / Unlisted Equity / Wills &
Trust / Alternative Investment Funds / International products / External Asset Cross sell
/ Other Referral Products : Income is recognised as per the contractual rate on trade
date basis and is exclusive of goods and service tax and securities transaction tax (STT)
wherever applicable.

(i) Insurance Income : Income is recognised for the commission earned by the Group on the
issuance of policies logged in during the month and confirmed by the Insurers subject to
cancellations done by the customers.

(iif) Income from Mutual Funds : Income is recognised as per the commission specified in the
agreement on daily average assets under management which is provided by Registrar and
Transfer Agents of each Mutual Fund Entities.

(iv) Income from Portfolio Management Services (“PMS”) & Alternative Investment Funds
(“Trail based AIF”) :

a. Income from PMS and Trail based AlF is recognised on monthly basis on the monthly
closing assets of each partner and as per the contractual commission specified in the
agreement.
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b. Processing fees, if any, is recognized on upfront basis in the year of receipt.

c. Performance based fee, wherever applicable, is recognized as a percentage of annual
profit, in accordance with the terms of the agreement with clients on the completion of
the period.

Dividend income

Income from dividend on investment in equity shares of corporate bodies and units of mutual funds
is accounted when the Group’s right to receive dividend is established and it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Leases
Asset given on lease:

Leases are classified as operating lease where significant portion of risks and reward of ownership
of assets acquired under lease is retained by the lessor. Leases of assets under which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessee are classified as
finance lease.

Assets given under finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. Lease rentals are apportioned between principal and interest on the internal
rate of return. The principal amount received reduces the net investment in the lease and interest is
recognised as revenue.

Lease rental - under operating leases (excluding amount for services such as insurance and
maintenance) are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except for increase in line
with expected inflationary cost increases.

Asset taken on lease:
The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for properties.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately on the face of the Balance
sheet. Lease payments (including interest) have been classified as financing cashflows.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any, and
adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated
using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term. Right-of-
use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property, it is presented in investment
property.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group uses incremental borrowing rate.

The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased
by lease payment made. The carrying amount of lease liability is remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
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Xii.

xiii.

A change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
as appropriate, changes in the assessment of whether a purchase or extension option is reasonably
certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has applied judgement to determine the lease term for some lease contracts in which it is
a lessee that include renewal options. The assessment of whether the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise such options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the amount of lease
liabilities and right of use assets recognised. The discounted rate is generally based on incremental
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the EIR on respective financial instruments
measured at amortised cost, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings, to the extent they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs.

The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial liability.

Calculation of the EIR includes all fees paid that are incremental and directly attributable to the issue
of a financial liability.

While computing the capitalisation rate for funds borrowed generally, an entity should exclude
borrowing costs applicable to borrowings made specifically for obtaining a qualifying asset, only
until the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs (related to specific borrowings)
that remain outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for intended use or for sale would
subsequently be considered as part of the general borrowing costs of the entity.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet on trade date,
i.e. when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs and
revenues that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs and revenues of financial assets or financial
liabilities carried at fair value through the profit or loss account are recognised immediately in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Trade Receivables are measured at transaction price.
a) Financial assets
Classification

On initial recognition, depending on the Group’s business model for managing the financial
assets and its contractual cash flow characteristics, a financial asset is classified as
measured at;

(i) Amortised cost;
(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); or
(iii)  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets.
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A financial asset is measured at amortized cost using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method
if it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognised as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI
(designated as FVTOCI - equity investment). This selection is made on investment - by -
investment basis.

All financials assets not classified and measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI as described
above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate
the financials assets that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized
costorat FVTOCI or at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces the accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed,
and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- The stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies
in practice.

- How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s
management;

- The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

- The frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectation about future sales activity.

- How managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation
is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows
collected).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Group determines whether newly recognized
financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new
business model. The Group reassess its business models at each reporting period to
determine whether the business models have changed since the preceding period.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. That principal amount may change over the life of the
financial assets (e.g. if there are payments of principal). Amount of ‘Interest’ is defined
as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending
risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
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timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers:

Contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

Terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
Prepayment and extension features; and

Terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets.

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Contractual terms that introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows
that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity
prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are SPPI.

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest
criterion if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired
at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits
or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if
the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
at FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The transaction costs and fees are also recorded
related to these instruments in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
at amortised effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
cost losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Investments) at
FVTOCI

Financial Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is
assets (other achieved by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash
than Equity flows that are solely payments of principal and interest, are subsequently

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Fair

value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income
(OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and impairment
losses, if any are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss. On
derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from the equity to 'other income' in the statement of Profit and
Loss.

Equity
investments at
FVTOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends

are recognised as income in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless

the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Reclassifications within classes of financial assets

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period
after the Group changes its business model for managing financial assets. The classification
and measurement requirements of the new category apply prospectively from the first day of
the first reporting period following the change in business model that result in reclassifying the
Group’s financial assets.

Impairment of Financial Asset
Impairment approach
Overview of the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) principles

The Group records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans (including those classified
as measured at FVTOCI), together with loan commitments, in this section all referred to as
‘financial instruments’ other than those measured at FVTPL. Equity instruments are not subject
to impairment under Ind AS 109.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the
lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit
loss (12m ECL). The Group’s policies for determining if there has been a significant increase in
credit risk are set out in Note 45.

The 12m ECL is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both LTECLs and 12m ECLs are calculated on an individual/portfolio basis- having similar risk
characteristic, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of
the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Group categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and
Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1: When loans are first recognised, the Group recognises an allowance based on
12mECLs. This also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the
loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
Group records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities,
where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make the contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall
due. Accordingly, the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 3, if on the reporting
date, it has been more than 90 days past due. Further if the customer has requested
forbearance in repayment terms, such restructured, rescheduled or renegotiated
accounts are also classified as Stage 3. Non-payment on another obligation of the
same customer is also considered as a stage 3. Defaulted accounts include
customers reported as fraud in the FRMC. Once an account defaults as a result of
the DPD condition, it will be considered to be cured only when entire arrears of
interest and principal are paid by the borrower. The Company records an allowance
for the LTECLSs.
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Undrawn loan commitments

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, over the duration of the commitment,
the Group is required to provide a loan with pre- specified terms to the customer. Undrawn loan
commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.

Financial guarantee contract:

A financial guarantee contract requires the Group to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values
and, if not designated as at FVTPL and not arising from a transfer of a financial asset, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

+ the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition policies. The Group has
not designated any financial guarantee contracts as FVTPL.

Group’s ECL for financial guarantee is estimated based on the present value of the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs. The shortfalls are discounted
by the interest rate relevant to the exposure.

The Measurement of ECLs

The Group calculates ECLs based on a probability-weighted scenario to measure the expected
cash shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference
between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD): The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD): The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future
default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date,
including repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise,
expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed payments.

Loss Given Default (LGD): The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case
where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation
of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and disclosed separately from modification
losses or gains that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial asset’s gross carrying
value.

When estimating LTECLs for undrawn loan commitments, the Group estimates the expected
portion of the loan commitment that will be drawn down over its expected life. The ECL is
then based on the present value of the expected shortfalls in cash flows if the loan is drawn
down, based on a probability-weightage. The expected cash shortfalls are discounted at an
approximation to the expected EIR on the loan.

The above calculated PDs, EAD and LGDs are reviewed and changes in the forward looking
estimates are analysed during the year.
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The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:

Stage 1 The 12 months ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs
that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date. These expected 12-months default probabilities are
applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2 When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Group
records an allowance for the LTECLs. The mechanics are similar to those explained
above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the lifetime of the instrument. The
expected cash shortfalls are discounted by a contractual or portfolio EIR as the case
may be.

Stage 3 For loans considered credit-impaired, the Group recognises the lifetime expected
credit losses for these loans. The method is similar to that for stage 2 assets, with the
PD set at 100%.

In ECL model the Group relies on broad range of forward looking information for economic
inputs.

The Group recognises loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on all financial assets
at amortised cost that are debt instruments, debt financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. No impairment
loss is recognised on equity investments.

When determining whether credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, including on historical experience
and forward-looking information (Refer Note 44).

Impairment of Trade receivable and Operating lease receivable

Impairment allowance on trade receivables is made on the basis of life time credit loss method, in
addition to specific provision considering the uncertainty of recoverability of certain receivables.

Write-off

Impaired loans and receivables are written off, against the related allowance for loan impairment
on completion of the Group’s internal processes and when the Group concludes that there is no
longer any realistic prospect of recovery of part or all of the loan. For loans that are individually
assessed for impairment, the timing of write off is determined on a case by case basis. A write-
off constitutes a de-recognition event. The Group has a right to apply enforcement activities to
recover such written off financial assets. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

Collateral valuation and repossession

To mitigate the credit risk on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible
as per the powers conferred on the Non Banking Finance Companies under the Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Securities Interest Act, 2002
(“SARFAESI").

The Group provides fully secured, partially secured and unsecured loans to individuals and
Corporates. In its normal course of business upon account becoming delinquent, the Group
physically repossess properties or other assets in its retail portfolio. Any surplus funds are
returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the residential properties,
vehicles, plant and machinery under legal repossession processes are not recorded on the
balance sheet and not treated as non—current assets held for sale unless the title is also
transferred in the name of the Group.

115



TATA CAPITAL
Count on us Annual Report 2022-23

116

NOTES FORMING PART OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

Type of Financial asset Disclosure

Financial asset measured at Shown as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
amortised cost of the assets

Loan commitments and financial Shown separately under the head "provisions"
guarantee contracts

Modification and De-recognition of financial assets
Modification of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows
of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and
maturity of the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual
cash flows either immediately or at a future date. The Group renegotiates loans to customers
in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk of default. A loan forbearance
is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under the
original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened and
the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of
the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash
flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due
(principal and interest forgiveness). Such accounts are classified as stage 3 immediately upon
such modification in the terms of the contract.

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a
class of obligors that are not overdue is not considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to
deterioration in staging.

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

(a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(b) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, or the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i)
the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OClI is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any cumulative gain/loss recognised in OCl in respect of equity investment securities designated
as at FVTOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest
in transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the
Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
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Financial liability, Equity and Compound Financial Instruments

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at the amortised cost using the effective
interest method, unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and
loss. Interest expense are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Group or a contract that will or may be settled in the Group’s own
equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Group is or may be obliged to
deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity
that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another
financial asset) for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Classification

The Group classifies its financial liability as “Financial liability measured at amortised cost”
except for those classified as financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Group’s
own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

No gain/loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Group’s own equity instruments.

Treasury shares

When any entity within the Group purchases the company’s ordinary shares, the consideration
paid including any directly attributable incremental cost is presented as a deduction from total
equity, until they are cancelled, sold or reissued. When treasury shares are sold or reissued
subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the resulting
surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred to/from securities premium.

Compound instruments

The Group has issued financial instruments with equity conversion rights and call options. When
establishing the accounting treatment for these non- derivative instruments, the Group first
establishes whether the instrument is a compound instrument and classifies such instrument’s
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b)

components separately as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with Ind
AS 32. Classification of the liability and equity components of a convertible instrument is not
revised as a result of a change in the likelihood that a conversion option will be exercised, even
when exercising the option may appear to have become economically advantageous to some
holders. When allocating the initial carrying amount of a compound financial instrument to the
equity and liability components, the equity component is assigned as the residual amount after
deducting from the entire fair value of the instrument, the amount separately determined for
the liability component. The value of any derivative features (such as a call options) embedded
in the compound financial instrument, other than the equity component (such as an equity
conversion option), is included in the liability component. Once the Group has determined
the split between equity and liability, it further evaluates whether the liability component has
embedded derivatives that must be separately accounted for. Subsequently the liability is
measured as per requirement of IND AS 109.

A Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCCPS), with an option to holder
to convert the instrument into variable number of equity shares of the entity upon redemption
is classified as a financial liability and dividend including dividend distribution tax is accrued
on such instruments and recorded as finance cost. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to retained profits. No gain/loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
risk exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for
separately if certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting
gain/loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and is effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in the statement of profit and loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in
cash flows associated with its floating rate borrowings arising from changes in interest rates and
exchange rates.

At inception of designated hedging relationships, the Group documents the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Group also documents the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the
changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each
other.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised in OCl and accumulated in the other
equity under ‘effective portion of cash flows hedges’. The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of the derivative that is recognised in OCl is limited to the cumulative change in fair value
of the hedged item, determined on a present value basis, from inception of the hedge. Any
ineffective portion of changes in fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The Group designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward exchange
contracts as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedge relationships. The change in fair value
of the forward element of the forward exchange contracts (‘forward points’) is separately
accounted for as cost of hedging and recognised separately within equity.
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If a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is sold,
expires, is terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. If
the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been
accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

c) Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances

Cash, Cash equivalents and bank balances include fixed deposits, (with an original maturity
of three months or less from the date of placement), margin money deposits, and earmarked
balances with banks are carried at amortised cost. Short term and liquid investments being
subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value, are included as part of cash and cash
equivalents.

xiv. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) PPE
a) PPE

Property, plant and equipment acquired by the Group are reported at acquisition cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and estimated cost of dismantling
and removing the item and restoring the site on which its located if any. However estimated
cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which its located does not
arise for leased assets since the same are borne by the lessee as per the lease agreement.
The acquisition cost includes any cost attributable for bringing an asset to its working condition
net of tax/duty credits availed, which comprises of purchase consideration and other directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended use. PPE is
recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure on
PPE after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits will
flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

b) Capital work-in-progress

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital
work-in-progress” and carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and
attributable interest.

c) Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any,
less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administrative and other general
overhead expenses that are specifically attributable to the acquisition of intangible assets are
allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on software
support and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in
which such costs are incurred.

d) Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets not ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as
“Intangible assets under development”.

e) Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciable amount for tangible property, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. The residual value of each asset
given on Operating lease is determined at the time of recording of the lease asset. If the residual
value of the Operating lease asset is higher than 5%, the Group has a justification in place for
considering the same.
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f)

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment deployed for own use has been provided
on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies
Act, 2013 except in respect of buildings, equipment and vehicles, in whose case the life of the
assets has been internally assessed based on the nature of the asset, the estimated usage
of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, etc. Based
on internal assessment, depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment deployed on
operating lease has been provided on the straight-line method over the primary lease period of
the asset. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect expected pattern
of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life
and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change
in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis. Depreciation
for additions to/deductions from owned assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of
use. Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that
the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life. All capital
assets with individual value less than Rs. 5,000 are depreciated fully in the year in which they
are purchased.

Purchased software / licenses are amortised over the estimated useful life during which the
benefits are expected to accrue, while Goodwill if any is tested for impairment at each Balance
Sheet date. The method of amortisation, residual value and useful life are reviewed at the end
of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charge
in the remaining periods so as to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its remaining
useful life.

Estimated useful life of Owned assets considered by the Group are:

Asset Estimated Useful Life
Leasehold Improvements As per lease period
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Computer Equipment 4 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Vehicles 4 years

Software Licenses 1to 10 years

Buildings 25 years

Plant & Machinery 10 years

Leased assets: as per the lease period
Investment property

Properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as Investment
properties and measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition its measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. When the use of an existing property changes from owner-occupied to investment
property, the property is reclassified as investment property at its carrying amount on the date
of reclassification.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of property is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the same period.
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d) Impairment of assets

Upon an observed trigger, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment
property and intangible asset to determine whether there is any indication that the asset
have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and
intangible assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
is recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

h) De-recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

xv. Non-Current Assets held for sale:

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount is intended to be recovered
principally through a sale (rather than through continuing use) when the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of
such asset and the sale is highly probable and is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.

The Group has a policy to make impairment provision at one third of the value of the Asset for each
year upon completion of three years up to the end of five years based on the past observed pattern
of recoveries. Losses on initial classification as Held for sale and subsequent gains & losses on
Remeasurement are recognised in Statement of Profit and loss. Once classified as Held for sale,
the assets are no longer amortised or depreciated.

xvi. Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution benefits include superannuation fund.

Defined Employee benefits include gratuity fund, provident fund compensated absences and long
service awards.
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Defined contribution plans

The Group’s contribution to superannuation fund is considered as defined contribution plan and is
charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss based on the amount of contribution
required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The Group makes Provident Fund contributions, a defined benefit plan for qualifying employees.
Under the Schemes, both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified
percentage of the covered employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary). The contributions,
except that the employer’s contribution towards pension fund is paid to the Regional Provident
Fund office, as specified under the law, are made to the provident fund set up as an irrevocable
trust by Tata Capital Limited (“the ultimate parent Company”). The interest rate payable to the
members of the trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate of interest declared by the Central
Government under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and
shortfall on account of, if any, shall be made good by the Group. Hence the Group is liable for annual
contributions and any deficiency in interest cost compared to interest computed based on the rate
of interest declared by the Central Government. The total liability in respect of the interest shortfall
of the Fund is determined on the basis of an actuarial valuation. The interest liability arising only to
the extent of the aforesaid differential shortfalls is a defined benefit plan. There is no such shortfall
as at March 31, 2023.

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render
the service. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are
expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employee
renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that
increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the
year in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan assets
out of which the obligations are expected to be settled. Long term service awards are recognised as a
liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date.

The obligation is measured on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected unit credit method
and Remeasurement gains/ losses are recognised in P&L in the period in which they arise.

Share based payment transaction

The stock options of the Parent Group, granted to employees pursuant to the Group’s Stock Options
Schemes, are measured at the fair value of the options at the grant date as per Black and Scholes
model. The fair value of the options is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensation
cost, with a corresponding increase in other equity, over the vesting period on a straight line basis.
The amount recognised as expense in each year is arrived at based on the number of grants
expected to vest. If a grant lapses after the vesting period, the cumulative discount recognised as
expense, with a corresponding increase in other equity, in respect of such grant is transferred to the
General reserve within other equity.
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xvii. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency are recorded on initial
recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each Balance Sheet date, foreign
currency monetary items are reported at the rates prevailing at the year end. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated.

Functional currency of the Group and foreign operations has been determined based on the primary
economic environment in which the Company and its foreign operations operate considering the
currency in which funds are generated, spent and retained.

Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting of monetary items
at each Balance Sheet date at the closing spot rate are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the period in which they arise.

xviii. Operating Segments

The Group’s main business is financing by way of loans for retail and corporate borrowers in India.
The Group’s operating segments consist of “Financing Activity”, “ Investment Activity” and “Others”.
All other activities of the Group revolve around the main businesses. This in the context of Ind AS
108 - operating segments reporting are considered to constitute reportable segment. The Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the Group is the Board of Directors along with Managing

Director. Operating segment disclosures are consistent with the information reviewed by the CODM.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions
with any of the Group’s other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.
Accordingly, all operating segment’s operating results of the Group are reviewed regularly by the
Board of Directors to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segments and assess
their performance.

The “Financing Activity” segment consists of asset financing, term loans (corporate and retail),
channel financing, credit substitutes, investments linked to/arising out of lending business and
bill discounting. The “Investment Activity” segment includes corporate investments and “Others”
segment primarily includes advisory services, wealth management, distribution of financial products
and leasing.

Revenue and expense directly attributable to segments are reported under each operating segment.
Expenses not directly identifiable to each of the segments have been allocated to each segment
on the basis of associated revenues/expenses of each segment. All other expenses which are not
attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed as un-allocable expenses.

Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to segments are disclosed under each reportable
segment. All other assets and liabilities are disclosed as un-allocable.

Xix. Investments in associates

The Group has elected to measure investment in associate at cost as per Ind AS 27 - Separate
Financial Statements, accordingly measurement at fair value through statement of profit and loss
account and related disclosure under Ind AS 109 does not apply.

xx. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing net income attributable to owners of the Group
by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid up equity share is
included as fully paid equivalent according to the fraction paid up.

Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of shares and
dilutive potential shares, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.
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XXi.

XXii.

Taxation
Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity when they relate to
items that are recognized in the respective line items.

Current Tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax
law) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and
unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused
tax credits could be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/
reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit
will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Goods and Services Input Tax Credit

Goods and Services Input tax credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the supply
of goods or service received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing/utilising the
credits.

xxiii. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Group determines the level
of provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates
specific to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit
and Loss net of any reimbursement.
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Contingent assets/liabilities

A possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group or; present obligation that arises from past events where it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability are disclosed as contingent
liability and not provided for. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable. Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under such contract, the present obligation under the contract is
recognised and measured as a provision.

xxiv. Commitments
Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:

(a) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided
for;

(b) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;

(c) funding related commitment to associate; and

(d) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and
relevant in the opinion of management.

(e) other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are
not disclosed to avoid excessive details.

(f) commitments under Loan agreement to disburse Loans.

(g) lease agreements entered but not executed.

xxv. Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting
the net profit for the effects of:

(a) Changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash
nature;

(b) Non-cash items such as depreciation, Impairment, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency
gains and losses, and undistributed profits of associates and joint ventures; and

(c) All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date of Balance Sheet.

xxvi. Dividend payable

Interim dividend declared to equity shareholders, if any, is recognised as liability in the period in
which the said dividend has been declared by the Board of Directors. Final dividend declared, if any,
is recognised in the period in which the said dividend has been approved by the Shareholders.

The dividend payable is recognised as a liability with a corresponding amount recognised directly in
equity.
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xxvii. Recent amendments

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 31st March 2023 through Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 has notified the following amendments to Ind AS which are
applicable for the annual periods beginning on or after 1st April, 2023.

a)

b)

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements — This amendment requires the Company to
disclose its material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.

The Group does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial
statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment
has changed the definition of a “change in accounting estimates” to a definition of “accounting
estimates”. The amendment clarifies how companies should distinguish changes in accounting
policies from changes in accounting estimates.

The Group does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial
statements.
Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes - This amendment has done away with the recognition exemption
on initial recognition of assets and liabilities that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary
differences.

The Group does not expect this amendment to have any material impact in its financial
statements.

Note 3: Cash and cash equivalents

® in lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

At Amortised cost

Cash on hand 30 14
Balances with banks in current accounts 2,78,883 1,36,161
Cheques, drafts on hand 953 378
Balances with banks in deposit accounts (Refer note below) 26,022 71,609
Total 3,05,888 2,08,162

(iy As at March 31, 2023, the Group had undrawn committed borrowing facilities of Rs. 11,57,951 lakh
(March 31, 2022 : Rs. 10,54,267 lakh).

(i) Balance with banks in deposit accounts comprises deposits that have an original maturity less than
3 months at balance sheet date.
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Note 4: Bank balance other than (Note 3) above

® in lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

As at

At Amortised cost

Balances with banks in deposit accounts 25,564 5,270
Balances with Banks In earmarked accounts 207 150
Total 25,771 5,420

(i) Balance with banks in deposit accounts comprises deposits that have an original maturity exceeding
3 months at balance sheet date.

(i) Deposits includes lien with Banks and Stock Exchanges as margin amounting to ¥ 63 lakh

(March 31, 2022: % 63 lakh).

(iii) Deposits amounting to ¥ 50 lakh (March 31, 2022 : ¥ 50 lakh) pertain to collateral deposits with
banks for Aadhaar authentication.

Note 5: Derivative financial instruments

As at March 31, 2023 ( in lakh)
Derivatives held for Notional Notional Notional | Fair value | Fair value
cashflow hedge value - USD | value - JPY | value INR assets liabilities
(in mn) (in mn) (in lakh)
Foreign exchange forward 321 3,190 1,61,715 904 5,968
Interest rate swap* - - - 2,639 -
Cross currency swap 1,270 - 4,88,572 19,415 264
Total 1,591 3,190 6,50,287 22,958 6,232
As at March 31, 2022 (X in lakh)
Derivatives held for Notional Notional Notional | Fairvalue | Fair value
cashflow hedge value - USD | value - JPY | value INR assets liabilities
(in mn) (in mn) (in lakh)
Foreign exchange forward 255 17,677 3,01,666 59 33,580
Interest rate swap* - - - 899 427
Cross currency swap 140 - 1,05,728 2,563 298
Total 395 17,677 4,07,394 3,521 34,305
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5.1 Disclosure of effects of hedge accounting on financial performance and exposure to foreign

currency

As at March 31, 2023

(X in lakh)

Swaps

Particulars Notional Carrying Carrying Weighted | Change in the
amount amount of amount of average | fair value in the
hedging hedging contract / hedging
instruments | instruments | strike price |instrument used
assets liabilities of as the basis
the for recognising
hedging hedge
instrument | ineffectiveness
profit / (loss)
INR USD - Forward 1,41,984 904 60 87.25 844
exchange contracts
INR JPY - Forward 19,731 - (5,756) 0.83 5,756
exchange contracts
INR USD - Currency 4,88,572 19,415 264 80.11 19,151
Swaps
As at March 31, 2022 (X in lakh)
Particulars Notional Carrying Carrying | Weighted | Change in the
amount amount of amount of average | fair value in the
hedging hedging contract / hedging
instruments | instruments strike  |instrument used
assets liabilities price of | as the basis for
the recognising
hedging hedge
instrument| ineffectiveness
profit / (loss)
INR USD - Forward 1,92,105 59 4,578 79.96 (4,519)
exchange contracts
INR JPY - Forward 1,09,561 - 20,650 0.76 (20,650)
exchange contracts
INR USD - Cross Currency 1,05,728 2,563 298 72.76 2,265
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Hedged item
As at March 31, 2023 (X in lakh)
Particulars Change in the Cash flow hedge Cost of Foreign
value of hedged reserve as at hedging as at Currency
item used as the Monetary ltems
basis for Translation
recognising hedge Reserve
ineffectiveness
FCY Term Loans (17,318) (3,639) -
As at March 31, 2022 (X in lakh)
Particulars Change in the Cash flow hedge Cost of Foreign
value of hedged reserve as at hedging as at Currency
item used as the Monetary ltems
basis for Translation
recognising edge Reserve
ineffectiveness
FCY Term Loans (3,356) (35,194) -
5.2 The impact of the cashflow hedges in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive
income
(X in lakh)
Particulars Hedging gains or (losses) Hedge ineffectiveness recognised

For the year

For the year

For the year

For the year

swaps

contracts and currency

ended ended ended ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Forward exchange 31,554 (12,653) - -

5.3 Movements in the cash flow hedge reserve are as follows:

® in lakh)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 1,502 (2,420)
Effective portion of changes in fair value Currency Swap 17,093 2,184
Effective portion of changes in fair value Interest rate risk 2,119 3,620
Effective portion of changes in fair value interest rate cap - 80
Effective portion of changes in fair value foreign currency risk 28,954 (16,138)
Foreign currency translation differences on loan (14,164) 1,441
Amortisation of forward premium (30,030) 14,096
Provision for derivative current credit exposure 67 -
Tax on movements on reserves (1,027) (1,361)
Closing Balance 4,514 1,502

All hedges are 100% effective i.e. there is no ineffectiveness.
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5.4 Average interest rate

Interest rate swap: 7.31% to 8.26%
Cross currency swap: 7.83% to 8.24%

The Group’s risk management strategy and how it is applied to manage risk is explained in Note 45.
* Interest rate swaps have been taken in respect of the same contract for which forward contract have

been entered, accordingly notional value of interest rate swap is not shown separately.

Note 6: Receivables
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 in lakh)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Trade receivables
At Amortised cost

(a) Receivables considered good - Secured - 4

(b) Receivables considered good - Unsecured 7,361 3,115

(c) Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 88 131

(d) Receivables - credit impaired 1,560 74

9,009 3,324

Impairment loss allowance (1,648) (91)

Total 7,361 3,233
Other receivables
At Amortised cost

(a) Receivables considered good - Unsecured 49 32

49 32

Impairment loss allowance (10) (10)

39 22

Total 7,400 3,255

Trade receivables include amounts due from the related parties ¥ 241 lakh (March 31, 2022: X 274 lakh)
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(% in lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Total
Un- Not Less 6 1-2 2-3 More
billed | due | than 6 | months | years | years | than 3
Dues months | - 1 year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - 45 - 7,299 17 - - - 7,361
considered good
(i) Undisputed Trade - - - 36 7 10 35 88
Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade - - -| 1,487 6 1 66 | 1,560
Receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - - - -
considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - - - -
which have significant increase
in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - - - -
credit impaired
Total 45 -| 7,299 | 1,540 13 1" 101 | 9,009

Note : Ageing of the trade receivables is determined from the date of transaction till the reporting date.

(X in lakh)
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 Total
Un- Not Less 6 1-2 2-3 | More
billed | due | than 6 | months | years | years | than 3
Dues months | - 1 year years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — 2 -1 3,101 16 - - -1 3,119
considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade - - - - 57 11 63 131
Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade - - 7 - - 1 66 74
Receivables — credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— - - - - - - - -
considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — - - - - - - - -
which have significant increase
in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — - - - - - - - -
credit impaired
Total 2 - 3,108 16 57 12 129 | 3,324

Note : Ageing of the trade receivables is determined from the date of transaction till the reporting date.
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Note 7: Loans
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® in lakh)
Particulars As at As at
Marc